

March 10, 2011
No. 15

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Web Site Address: www.gencourt.state.nh.us



**First Year of the 162nd Session of the
New Hampshire General Court
Legislative**

SENATE CALENDAR

**THE SENATE WILL MEET IN SESSION ON
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 16, 2011, AT 10:00 A.M.**

LAI D ON THE TABLE

SB 24-FN-L, exempting the Unity school district from the moratorium on school building aid. **3/9/11, pending motion Ought to Pass, Finance, SJ 8, pg. TBA**

SB 40, making technical corrections to meals and rooms tax laws. **2/23/11, pending motion Committee Amendment (0362s), Ways and Means, SJ 7, pg. 77**

SB 53-FN, relative to the definition of nursing and establishing a nursing assistant registry fund administered by the board of nursing. **2/23/11, pending motion Committee Amendment (0400s), Executive Departments and Administration, SJ 7, pg. 70**

SB 103, requiring the commissioner of administrative services to develop a plan to consolidate the human resource functions within state government. **2/16/11, pending motion OT3rdg, Finance, SJ 6, pg. 56**

SB 164, relative to the personal needs allowance of residents of nursing homes. **3/9/11, pending motion OT3rdg, Health and Human Services, SJ 8, pg. TBA**

SB 178, establishing a commission to study long-term sustainable funding for school building aid and the establishment of eligibility criteria for school building aid in order to ensure that all school age children in every part of the state have access to a safe, healthy, and academic environment for learning. **3/9/11, pending motion Inexpedient to Legislate, Education, SJ 8, pg. TBA**

REPORTS

COMMERCE

SB 70-FN, relative to remedies in landlord-tenant actions.

Re-refer to committee, Vote 4-0.

Senator De Blois for the committee.

SB 77-FN, relative to the special fund for payment for second injuries under the workers' compensation law.

Re-refer to committee, Vote 4-0.

Senator Sanborn for the committee.

SB 160-FN, relative to the definition and regulation of installment loans.

Ought to Pass with Amendment, Vote 3-1.

Senator Sanborn for the committee.

SB 162-FN, relative to federal health care reform 2010.

Ought to Pass with Amendment, Vote 4-0.

Senator White for the committee.

EDUCATION

SB 113, relative to nonpublic schools receiving public funds.

Inexpedient to Legislate, Vote 3-0.

Senator Carson for the committee.

SB 117, relative to private postsecondary career schools and the student tuition guaranty fund.

Ought to Pass with Amendment, Vote 3-0.

Senator Stiles for the committee.

SB 192, establishing a commission to identify strategies needed for delivering a 21st century education.

Ought to Pass with Amendment, Vote 3-0.

Senator Stiles for the committee.

SB 194, transferring all real and personal property from the former department of regional community-technical colleges to the board of trustees of the community college system of New Hampshire.

Ought to Pass, Vote 3-0.

Senator Forsythe for the committee.

ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES

SB 84-FN, relative to state regulation of the septic system installation process.

Re-refer to committee, Vote 5-0.

Senator Lambert for the committee.

SB 105, excepting department of transportation property from evaluation requirements for certain all terrain and trail bike trails.

Ought to Pass with Amendment, Vote 5-0.

Senator Bradley for the committee.

SB 106, naming the visitor center at Jericho Mountain state park for Robert Danderson.

Ought to Pass, Vote 3-0.

Senator Gallus for the committee.

SB 142-FN, relative to reorganizing the permitting process within the department of environmental services.

Re-refer to committee, Vote 5-0.

Senator Merrill for the committee.

SB 154-FN, reforming the comprehensive shoreland protection act.

Ought to Pass with Amendment, Vote 5-0.

Senator Bradley for the committee.

EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENTS AND ADMINISTRATION

SB 3-FN-A-L, making comprehensive changes to the state retirement system.

Ought to Pass with Amendment, Vote 4-1.

Senator Carson for the committee.

SB 75-FN, relative to notification by the retirement system to the department of administrative services of law and rule changes; the availability of public documents of the retirement system; and clarification of part-time service.

Inexpedient to Legislate, Vote 3-1.

Senator White for the committee.

SB 152-FN, relative to participation in state employees' group insurance by members of the general court.

Ought to Pass with Amendment, Vote 5-0.

Senator Carson for the committee.

SB 153-FN, relative to the regulation of real estate appraisers by the New Hampshire real estate appraiser board.

Ought to Pass with Amendment, Vote 5-0.

Senator Carson for the committee.

SB 161-FN, relative to procedures for adoption of agency rules under the administrative procedures act.

Ought to Pass with Amendment, Vote 4-0.

Senator Groen for the committee.

SB 177, relative to training of directors and officers of nonprofit corporations.

Re-refer to committee, Vote 5-0.

Senator Carson for the committee.

HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

SB 147-FN, relative to Medicaid managed care.

Ought to Pass with Amendment, Vote 5-0.

Senator Bradley for the committee.

SB 151-FN, relative to contracts of the department of health and human services.

Ought to Pass with Amendment, Vote 3-0.

Senator Lambert for the committee.

JUDICIARY

SB 134-FN, relative to jury trials under the consumer protection act.

Inexpedient to Legislate, Vote 4-0.

Senator Luther for the committee.

PUBLIC AND MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS

SB 83-FN, enabling municipalities to create other post-employment benefits (OPEB) trusts.

Re-refer to committee, Vote 5-0.

Senator Merrill for the committee.

SB 129-FN, requiring valid photo identification to vote in person.

Ought to Pass, Vote 4-1.

Senator Barnes for the committee.

TRANSPORTATION

SB 195, naming the Manchester Airport Access Road for Raymond Wieczorek.

Ought to Pass, Vote 4-0.

Senator Boutin for the committee.

WAYS AND MEANS

SB 13-FN, increasing the limit on single wagers for games of chance conducted by charitable organizations.

Re-refer to committee, Vote 5-0.

Senator Morse for the committee.

SB 56-FN, authorizing the department of revenue administration to accept credit card payments of taxes.

Ought to Pass with Amendment, Vote 5-0.

Senator Boutin for the committee.

SB 58-FN-A, adding qualified community development entities to the definition of “qualified investment company” under the business profits tax and the business enterprise tax.

Ought to Pass with Amendment, Vote 5-0.

Senator Luther for the committee.

SB 79-FN, authorizing the department of revenue administration to impose administrative fines for timber tax violations.

Inexpedient to Legislate, Vote 5-0.

Senator Morse for the committee.

SB 125-FN-A, relative to the business profits tax deduction for reasonable compensation.

Ought to Pass, Vote 5-0.

Senator Morse for the committee.

SB 132-FN-A-L, establishing exemptions from the real estate transfer tax.

Re-refer to committee, Vote 5-0.

Senator Rausch for the committee.

SB 136-FN, relative to games of chance.

Ought to Pass with Amendment, Vote 5-0.

Senator Luther for the committee.

SB 155-FN-A, relative to section 179 expense deductions under the business profits tax.

Re-refer to committee, Vote 5-0.

Senator Luther for the committee.

SB 167-FN-A-L, establishing a production jobs creation credit under the business enterprise tax and making changes affecting small business to the business profits tax, the business enterprise tax, and the meals and rooms tax.

Re-refer to committee, Vote 5-0.

Senator Morse for the committee.

SB 182-FN-A-L, relative to video lottery and table gaming, providing property tax relief for local economies, providing services for problem gamers, and promoting tourism and public safety.

Re-refer to committee, Vote 6-0.

Senator D’Allesandro for the committee.

AMENDMENTS

Senate Executive Departments and Administration

March 8, 2011

2011-0701s

10/04

Amendment to SB 3-FN-A-LOCAL

Amend the bill by replacing all after the enacting clause with the following:

1 Retirement System; Definition of Earnable Compensation. Amend RSA 100-A:1, XVII to read as follows:

XVII. "Earnable compensation" shall mean:

(a) For [aH] members *who have attained vested status prior to July 1, 2011* the full base rate of compensation paid, ***as determined by the employer***, plus any overtime pay, holiday and vacation pay, sick pay, longevity or severance pay, cost of living bonus, additional pay for extracurricular and instructional activities [~~or for other extra or special duty~~], and any military differential pay, plus the fair market value of non-cash compensation paid to, or on behalf of, the member for meals or living quarters if subject to federal income tax, but excluding other compensation except cash incentives paid by an employer to encourage members to retire, supplemental pay paid by the employer while the member is receiving workers' compensation, and teacher development pay that is not part of the contracted annual salary. ***Compensation for extra and special duty, as determined by the employer, shall be included but limited during the highest 3 years of creditable service as provided in paragraph XVIII.*** However, earnable compensation in the final 12 months of creditable service prior to termination of employment shall be limited to 1-1/2 times the higher of the earnable compensation in the 12-month period preceding the final 12 months or the highest compensation year as determined for the purpose of calculating average final compensation, but excluding the final 12 months. Any compensation received in the final 12 months of employment in excess of such limit shall not be subject to member or employer contributions to the retirement system and shall not be considered in the computation of average final compensation. Provided that, the annual compensation limit for members of governmental defined benefit pension plans under section 401(a)(17) of the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, shall apply to earnable compensation for all employees, teachers, permanent firemen, and permanent policemen who first become eligible for membership in the system on or after July 1, 1996. Earnable compensation shall not include compensation in any form paid later than 120 days after the member's termination of employment from a retirement eligible position, with the limited exceptions of disability related severance pay paid to a member or retiree no later than 120 days after a decision by the board of trustees granting the member or retiree disability retirement benefits pursuant to RSA 100-A:6 and of severance pay which a member was entitled to be paid within 120 days after termination but which, without the consent of the member and not through any fault of the member, was paid more than 120 days after the member's termination. The member shall have the burden of proving to the board of trustees that any severance payment paid later than 120 days after the member's termination of employment is earnable compensation and meets the requirements of an asserted exception to the 120-day post-termination payment requirement.

(b) *For members who begin service after June 30, 2011 or who are not in vested status on July 1, 2011 the full base rate of compensation paid, as determined by the employer, plus any overtime pay, holiday and vacation pay, sick pay, longevity pay, cost of living bonus, additional pay for extracurricular and instructional activities, and any military differential pay, plus the fair market value of non-cash compensation paid to, or on behalf of, the member for meals or living quarters if subject to federal income tax, but excluding other compensation except supplemental pay paid by the employer while the member is receiving workers' compensation and teacher development pay that is not part of the contracted annual salary. Compensation for extra and special duty, as determined by the employer, shall be included but limited during the highest 3 years of creditable service as provided in paragraph XVIII. Earnable compensation shall not include incentives to encourage members to retire, severance pay, and pay for unused sick or vacation time. However, earnable compensation in the final 12 months of creditable service prior to termination of employment shall be limited to 1-1/2 times the higher of the earnable compensation in the 12-month period preceding the final 12 months or the highest compensation year as determined for the purpose of calculating average final compensation, but excluding the final 12 months. Any compensation received in the final 12 months of employment in excess of such limit shall not be subject to member or employer contributions to the retirement system and shall not be considered in the computation of average final compensation. Provided that, the annual compensation limit for members of governmental defined benefit pension plans under section 401(a)(17) of the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, shall apply to earnable compensation for all employees, teachers, permanent firemen, and permanent policemen who first become eligible for membership in the system on or after July 1, 1996. Earnable compensation shall not include compensation in any form paid later than 120 days after the member's termination of employment from a retirement eligible position.*

2 Retirement System; Definitions; Average Final Compensation. Amend RSA 100-A:1, XVIII to read as follows:

XVIII. "Average final compensation" shall mean:

(a) *For members who have attained vested status prior to July 1, 2011*, the average annual earnable compensation of a member during his or her highest 3 years of creditable service, or during all of the years in his or her creditable service if less than 3 years. ***For purposes of this calculation, the inclusion of the average annual compensation for extra and special duty in the 3 years shall not exceed the average annual amount of compensation for extra and special duty paid to the members over the member's last 7 years or over all of the years in his or her creditable service if less than 7 years.***

(b) *For members who began service after June 30, 2011 or have not attained vested status on July 1, 2011*, "average final compensation" shall mean the average annual earnable compensation of a member during his or her highest 5 years of creditable service, or during all of the years in his or her creditable service if less than 5 years. ***For purposes of this calculation, the inclusion of the average annual compensation for extra and special duty in the 3 years shall not exceed the average annual amount of compensation for extra and special duty paid to the members over the member's last 7 years or over all of the years in his or her creditable service if less than 7 years.***

3 Maximum Initial Benefit; Effective 2016. Amend RSA 100-A:6-a to read as follows:

100-A:6-a Maximum Retirement Benefit. Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter to the contrary, ~~[for members who commenced service before July 1, 2009,] a member's initial calculation of the retirement benefit granted under the provisions of RSA 100-A:5 or RSA 100-A:6 shall not exceed 100 percent of the member's highest year of [earnable compensation]~~ ***full base rate of compensation paid.*** ~~[For members who commenced service on or after July 1, 2009, a member's maximum retirement benefit granted under the provisions of RSA 100-A:5 or RSA 100-A:6 shall not exceed \$120,000.]~~ Nothing in this section shall affect the ability of a member to receive disability benefits pursuant to RSA 100-A:6, II(b) and (c). This provision shall not limit the application of supplemental allowances under RSA 100-A:41-a.

4 State Employees; Group Insurance Benefits; Group II. Amend RSA 21-I:30, III to read as follows:

III. Any vested deferred state retiree may receive medical and surgical benefits under this section if the vested deferred state retiree is eligible. To be eligible, a group I vested deferred state retiree shall have at least 10 years of creditable service with the state if the employee's service began prior to July 1, 2003 or 20 years of creditable service with the state if the employee's service began on or after July 1, 2003 and a group II vested deferred state retiree shall have at least 20 years of creditable service with the state if the employee's service with the state began on or after July 1, 2010. In addition, if the vested deferred state retiree is a member of group I, such retiree shall be at least 60 years of age to be eligible. If the vested deferred state retiree is a member of group II ***who is in vested status before July 1, 2011***, such retiree shall not be eligible until 20 years from the date of becoming a member of group II and shall be at least 45 years of age, ***and any group II member who commenced service after June 30, 2011 shall not be eligible until 25 years from the date of becoming a member of group II and shall be at least 50 years of age, and group II members not in vested status on July 1, 2011 shall be as provided in the transition provisions in RSA 100-A:5, II(d).***

5 Service Retirement; Group II. Amend RSA 100-A:5, II to read as follows:

II. Group II Members.

(a) Any group II member in service, ***who is in vested status before July 1, 2011***, who has attained age 45 and completed 20 years of creditable service, ***and any group II member who commenced service after June 30, 2011 who has attained age 50 and completed 25 years of creditable service, and group II members not in vested status on July 1, 2011 as provided in the transition provisions in RSA 100-A:5, II(d), or any group II member in service*** who has attained age 60 regardless of the number of years of creditable service, may retire on a service retirement allowance upon written application to the board of trustees setting forth at what time not less than 30 days nor more than 90 days subsequent to the filing thereof the member desires to be retired, notwithstanding that during such period of notification the member may have separated from service.

(b) Upon service retirement, a group II member shall receive a service retirement allowance which shall consist of:

(1) A member annuity which shall be the actuarial equivalent of his ***or her*** accumulated contributions at the time of retirement; and

(2) *For members who are in vested status before July 1, 2011*, a state annuity which, together with his *or her* member annuity, shall be equal to 2-1/2 percent of his *or her* average final compensation multiplied by the number of years of his *or her* creditable service not in excess of 40 years, *or for members who commenced service after June 30, 2011, a state annuity which, together with his or her member annuity, shall be equal to 2 percent of his or her average final compensation multiplied by the number of years of his or her creditable service not in excess of 50 years, and group II members not in vested status on July 1, 2011 shall be as provided in the transition provisions in RSA 100-A:5, II(d) with the maximum number of years adjusted proportionally between 40 and 50.*

(c)(1) Notwithstanding any provision of RSA 100-A to the contrary, any group II member who *is in vested status before July 1, 2011 and* has retired on or after the effective date of this subparagraph after attaining the age of 45 with at least 20 years of creditable service, *and any group II member who commenced service after June 30, 2011 and has retired on or after the effective date of this subparagraph after attaining the age of 50 with at least 25 years of creditable service, and group II members not in vested status on July 1, 2011 shall be as provided in the transition provisions in RSA 100-A:5, II(d)*, shall receive a minimum annual service retirement allowance of \$10,000. If such group II member has elected to convert the retirement allowance into an optional allowance for the surviving spouse under RSA 100-A:13, the surviving spouse shall be entitled to a proportional share of the \$10,000.

(2) [Repealed.]

(3) [Repealed.]

(d) *Active group II members who are not in vested status on July 1, 2011 shall be subject to the following transition provisions for years of service required for regular service retirement, the minimum age for regular service retirement, and the multiplier used to calculate the retirement annuity, which shall be applicable on July 1, 2011 according to the following table:*

<u><i>Creditable service</i></u>	<u><i>Minimum years of service</i></u>	<u><i>Minimum age attained</i></u>	<u><i>Annuity multiplier</i></u>
<u><i>on July 1, 2011</i></u>			
<i>(1) Less than 4 years</i>	<i>24</i>	<i>age 49</i>	<i>2.1%</i>
<i>(2) At least 4 years but less than 6 years</i>	<i>23</i>	<i>age 48</i>	<i>2.2%</i>
<i>(3) At least 6 years but less than 8 years</i>	<i>22</i>	<i>age 47</i>	<i>2.3%</i>
<i>(4) At least 8 years but less than 10 years</i>	<i>21</i>	<i>age 46</i>	<i>2.4%</i>

6 Ordinary Disability Retirement; Group II. Amend RSA 100-A:6, II(b) to read as follows:

(b) Upon ordinary disability retirement, the group II member shall receive an ordinary disability retirement allowance which shall consist of: a member annuity which shall be the actuarial equivalent of his *or her* accumulated contributions at the time of his *or her* ordinary disability retirement; and a state annuity which, together with his *or her* member annuity, *for members who are in vested status before July 1, 2011*, shall be equal to 2-1/2 percent of his *or her* average final compensation at the time of [his] ordinary disability retirement multiplied by the number of years of his *or her* creditable service not in excess of 40 at the time of [his] ordinary disability retirement, *or for members who commenced service after June 30, 2011, shall be equal to 2 percent of his or her average final compensation at the time of ordinary disability retirement multiplied by the number of years of his or her creditable service not in excess of 50 at the time of ordinary disability retirement, and group II members not in vested status on July 1, 2011 shall be as provided in the transition provisions in RSA 100-A:5, II(d) with the maximum number of years adjusted proportionally between 40 and 50* provided, however, that such allowance shall not be less than 25 percent of the member's final compensation at the time of his *or her* disability retirement.

7 Accidental Disability Retirement; Group II. Amend RSA 100-A:6, II(d) to read as follows:

(d) Upon accidental disability retirement, the group II member shall receive an accidental disability retirement allowance equal to 2/3 of his *or her* average final compensation at the time of [his] disability retirement.

(1) For *members who are in vested status before July 1, 2011*, any group II member who has more than 26-2/3 years of service, a supplemental disability retirement allowance shall be paid. Such supplement shall be equal to 2-1/2 percent of his *or her* average final compensation multiplied by the number of years of his *or her* creditable service in excess of 26-2/3 but not in excess of 40 years.

(2) For *members who commenced service after June 30, 2011, any group II member who has more than 33-1/3 years of service, a supplemental disability retirement allowance shall be paid. Such supplement shall be equal to 2 percent of his or her average final compensation multiplied by the number of years of his or her creditable service in excess of 33-1/3 but not in excess of 50 years.*

(3) For *group II members not in vested status on July 1, 2011 calculation of the supplemental allowance shall be as provided in the transition provisions in RSA 100-A:5, II(d) with the number of years for the supplement adjusted proportionally.*

8 Vested Deferred Retirement; Group II. Amend RSA 100-A:10, II(b) to read as follows:

(b) *For members who are in vested status before July 1, 2011*, upon the member's attainment of age 45, provided the member would then have completed 20 years of creditable service, otherwise the subsequent date on which such 20 years would have been completed, *or for members who commenced service after June 30, 2011, upon the member's attainment of age 50, provided the member would then have completed 25 years of creditable service, otherwise the subsequent date on which such 25 years would have been completed, and group II members not in vested status on July 1, 2011 shall be as provided in the transition provisions in RSA 100-A:5, II(d)*, or at any time after age 60, a group II member who meets the requirement of subparagraph (a) may make application on a form prescribed by the board of trustees and receive a vested deferred retirement allowance which shall consist of: (1) A member annuity which shall be the actuarial equivalent of accumulated contributions on the date the member's retirement allowance commences; and (2) A state annuity which, together with the member annuity, shall be equal to a service retirement allowance based on the member's average final compensation and creditable service at the time the member's service is terminated.

9 Split Benefits; Minimum Age. Amend RSA 100-A:19-b, II to read as follows:

II.(a) For a member *who is in vested status before July 1, 2011 and*, who has completed 20 or more years of combined creditable service, one year shall be deducted from age 60 for each year of creditable group II service, provided that the age shall not be less than 45 years.

(b) *For a member who commenced service after June 30, 2011 and who has completed 25 or more years of combined creditable service, one year shall be deducted from age 60 for each year of creditable group II service, provided that the age shall not be less than 50 years.*

(c) *For group II members not in vested status on July 1, 2011, minimum age shall be as provided in the transition provisions in RSA 100-A:5, II(d) with one year deducted from age 60 to not less than the adjusted minimum age.*

10 Split Benefits; Reduced Early Retirement. Amend RSA 100-A:19-d to read as follows:

100-A:19-d Reduced Early Retirement. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, any retirement system member who has creditable service in both group I and group II with at least 10 years combined creditable service, and who has attained an age which is at least 45 *for members who are in vested status with group II service before July 1, 2011 or at least 50 for members who commenced group II service after June 30, 2011, and group II members not in vested status on July 1, 2011 shall be as provided in the transition provisions in RSA 100-A:5, II(d)*, and is within 10 years of the minimum age set forth in RSA 100-A:19-b, may elect to retire and have benefits commence immediately as a reduced split-benefit service retirement allowance. Application shall be as provided in RSA 100-A:5, I(c). The allowance shall be determined as a split-benefit service retirement allowance in accordance with RSA 100-A:19-c, and the total combined split-benefit service allowance shall be reduced by the percentages shown in RSA 100-A:5, I(c), based on the total combined length of creditable service, for each month by which the date on which benefits commence precedes the month after which the member attains the minimum age set forth in RSA 100-A:19-b.

11 Financing; Member Contribution Rates; Group II Member Payroll Deduction. Amend RSA 100-A:16, I(a) to read as follows:

(a) The member annuity savings fund shall be a fund in which shall be accumulated the contributions deducted from the compensation of members to provide for their member annuities together with any amounts

transferred thereto from a similar fund under one or more of the predecessor systems. Such contribution shall be, for each member, dependent upon the member's employment classification at the rate determined in accordance with the following table:

~~[Employees of employers other than the state 5.00~~

~~Employees of the state hired on or before June 30, 2009 5.00~~

~~Employees of the state hired after June 30, 2009 7.00~~

~~Teachers 5.00~~

~~Permanent Policemen 9.30~~

~~Permanent Firemen 9.30]~~

Group I members, 7.00, provided that for any group I member whose contribution rate on June 30, 2011 was 5.00, the rate for the state fiscal year beginning July 1, 2011 shall be 6.00, and for the state fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012 and each state fiscal year thereafter the rate shall be 7.00.

Group II members, 11.30, provided that for any group II member whose contribution rate on June 30, 2011 was 9.30, the rate for the state fiscal year beginning July 1, 2011 shall be 10.30, and for the state fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012 and each state fiscal year thereafter the rate shall be 11.30.

The board of trustees shall certify to the proper authority or officer responsible for making up the payroll of each employer, and such authority or officer shall cause to be deducted from the compensation of each member, except group II members ***who are in vested status before July 1, 2011*** with creditable service in excess of 40 years ***and group II members who commenced service after June 30, 2011 with creditable service in excess of 50 years, and group II members not in vested status on July 1, 2011 shall be as provided in the transition provisions in RSA 100-A:5, II(d) with the maximum number of years adjusted proportionally between 40 and 50,*** as provided in RSA 100-A:5, II(b) and RSA 100-A:6, II(b), on each and every payroll of such employer for each and every payroll period, the percentage of earnable compensation applicable to such member. No deduction from earnable compensation under this paragraph shall apply to any group II member ***who is in vested status before July 1, 2011*** with creditable service in excess of 40 years, ***and any group II member who commenced service after June 30, 2011 with creditable service in excess of 50 years, and group II members not in vested status on July 1, 2011 shall be as provided in the transition provisions in RSA 100-A:5, II(d) with the maximum number of years adjusted proportionally between 40 and 50,*** as provided in RSA 100-A:5, II(b) and RSA 100-A:6, II(b), and this provision for such members shall not affect the method of determining average final compensation as provided in RSA 100-A:1, XVIII. In determining the amount earnable by a member in a payroll period, the board may consider the rate of compensation payable to such member on the first day of a payroll period as continuing throughout the payroll period and it may omit deduction from compensation for any period less than a full payroll period if such person was not a member on the first day of the payroll period, and to facilitate the making of deductions it may modify the deduction required of any member by such an amount as shall not exceed 1/10 of one percent of the annual earnable compensation upon the basis of which such deduction is made. The amounts deducted shall be reported to the board of trustees. Each of such amounts, when deducted, shall be paid to the retirement system at such times as may be designated by the board of trustees and credited to the individual account, in the member annuity savings fund, of the member from whose compensation the deduction was made.

12 Retirement System; Administration; Membership of Board. Amend RSA 100-A:14, I to read as follows:

I. The administration of this system is vested in a board of ~~[14]~~ **13** trustees. Each newly appointed or reappointed trustee shall have familiarity with or experience in finance or business management. The state treasurer shall be an ex officio voting member of the board. The governor and council shall appoint 2 trustees, to be known as nonmember trustees, who shall be qualified persons with investment and/or financial experience as provided in this paragraph and not be members of the system, and who shall serve for a term of 2 years and until their successors are appointed and qualified. The nonmember trustees of the board shall have substantial experience in the field of institutional investment or finance, taking into account factors such as educational background, business experience, and professional licensure and designations. The original appointment of one of the nonmember trustees shall be for a term of one year. The remaining ~~[11]~~ **10** members of the board shall consist of ~~[2 employees, 2 teachers, 2 permanent policemen, 2 permanent firemen]~~: ***one employee member, one teacher member, one permanent police member, one permanent fireman***

member, 4 employer members; one member of the senate who shall be appointed annually by the senate president, **and** one member of the house of representatives who serves on the executive departments and administration committee and who shall be appointed annually by the speaker of the house~~[-and one person representing management in local government]~~. Whenever a vacancy occurs **for a legislative member**, the senate president or the speaker of the house shall fill the vacancy in the same manner by appointing a senate or a house member who shall serve for the unexpired term. The New Hampshire state employees' association, the New Hampshire education association, the New Hampshire police association, **and** the New Hampshire state permanent firemen's association~~[-and the New Hampshire Local Government Center]~~ shall each annually nominate from their members a panel of 5 persons, all of whom ~~[except for the panel of the Local Government Center]~~ shall be active members of the retirement system~~[-or one of the 4 predecessor systems]~~, no later than May 31 of each year, and the panels so named shall be filed with the secretary of state no later than June 10 of each year. From ~~[each of]~~ the above named panels the governor and council shall appoint ~~[one person annually to]~~ **the active member trustees of the board**~~[-except for the panel of the Local Government Center, which shall have one person appointed every 2 years]~~ **as needed so as to maintain the representation on the board. The governor and council shall appoint the employer members of the board with one member nominated by the New Hampshire Association of Counties, one member nominated by the New Hampshire Municipal Association, one member nominated by the New Hampshire School Boards Association, and one member to represent management of state employees.** Members appointed to the board in the manner aforesaid shall serve for a term of 2 years. Each member so appointed shall hold office until his or her successor shall be appointed and qualified. Whenever a vacancy occurs, the governor and council shall fill the vacancy by appointing a member who shall serve for the unexpired term ~~[from the same panel from which the former member was appointed]~~. The governor shall designate one of the nonmember trustees to serve as chairman of said board of trustees.

13 Quorum. Amend RSA 100-A:14, IV to read as follows:

IV. Each trustee, including the chairman, shall be entitled to one vote in the board of trustees. ~~[Seven]~~ **Six** trustees shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business of the board of trustees. ~~[Seven]~~ **Six** votes shall be necessary for any resolution or action by the board at any meeting.

14 Application; Board of Trustees Membership. Members of the board of trustees for the retirement system on the effective date of this section shall serve for the remainder of their terms. In order to conform to changes to the retirement system board of trustees made by this act, upon a vacancy occurring in the membership on the board of trustees after the effective date of this section, the appointment of a trustee shall be made to reasonably conform to the trustee designations in RSA 100-A:14, I.

15 Repeal of Special Account Funding. RSA 100-A:16, II(h)(2), relative to the method of allocating funds to the special account, is repealed.

16 Return of Members' Contributions; Reference to Assumed Rate of Return. Amend RSA 100-A:11, I(a) to read as follows:

(a) If a group I member ceases to be an employee or teacher for reasons other than retirement or death and if he or she has not elected to receive a vested deferred retirement allowance under RSA 100-A:10, the amount of his or her accumulated contributions shall be paid within 3 months after his or her written request therefor, provided that the member may not file a written request for such payment until at least 30 days from the date the member ceases to be an employee or a teacher and provided that the member may not again become a group I member during said 30-day period. A group I member shall cease to be an active member if he or she is absent from service for more than 180 days, without requesting return of the amount of his or her accumulated contributions, and the retirement system shall retain his or her accumulated contributions. The annual return credited on inactive, vested members shall be paid pursuant to RSA 100-A:16, II(g). The board shall hold and invest such accumulated contributions on behalf of the inactive member, provided that the annual return credited on the inactive member's accumulated contributions shall be 2 percentage points less than either the assumed rate of return determined ~~[under RSA 100-A:16, II(h)]~~ **by the trustees** or the actual rate of return, whichever is lower, for the immediately preceding fiscal year as reported in the comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR), provided the rate of return shall not be less than zero. The inactive member may make a written request for his or her total accumulated contributions, provided he or she is not on a leave of absence, and he or she shall be paid within 3 months after his or her written request. In the event an inactive member who has not withdrawn his or her contributions under this section returns to become an active member in service, his or her previous service shall count toward that member's creditable service to the extent that his or her accumulated contributions have remained in the retirement system.

17 Return of Members' Contributions; Reference to Assumed Rate of Return. Amend RSA 100-A:11, II(a) to read as follows:

(a) If a group II member ceases to be a permanent policeman or permanent fireman for reasons other than retirement or death and if he or she has not elected to receive a vested deferred retirement allowance under RSA 100-A:10, the amount of his or her accumulated contributions shall be paid within 3 months after his or her written request therefor. A group II member shall cease to be an active member if he or she is absent from service for more than 180 days, without requesting return of the amount of his or her accumulated contributions, and the retirement system shall retain his or her accumulated contributions. The annual return credited on inactive, vested members shall be paid pursuant to RSA 100-A:16, II(g). The board shall hold and invest such accumulated contributions on behalf of the inactive member, provided that the annual return credited on the inactive member's accumulated contributions shall be 2 percentage points less than either the assumed rate of return determined ~~[under RSA 100-A:16, II(h)]~~ **by the trustees** or the actual rate of return, whichever is lower, for the immediately preceding fiscal year as reported in the comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR), provided the rate of return shall not be less than zero. The inactive member may make a written request for his or her total accumulated contributions, provided he or she is not on a leave of absence, and he or she shall be paid within 3 months after his or her written request. In the event an inactive member who has not withdrawn his or her contributions under this section returns to become an active member in service, his or her previous service shall count toward that member's creditable service to the extent that his or her accumulated contributions have remained in the retirement system.

18 Medical Benefits Subsidy; Payment by Retirement System. Amend RSA 100-A:52, II to read as follows:

II. However, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1990, the maximum amount payable by the retirement system under this subdivision on account of each person qualified under paragraph I who is not entitled to Medicare benefits, shall be \$101.50 per month, and on account of each person qualified under paragraph I who is entitled to Medicare benefits, shall be \$64 per month. As of July 1, 1991, and on each July 1 until and including July 1, 2007, the maximum amount payable by the retirement system as provided in this paragraph shall be increased by 8 percent, compounded on previous increases. After July 1, 2007 ~~[and until and including July 1, 2011]~~, the rate payable under this paragraph shall not be increased. ~~[As of July 1, 2012, and on each July 1 thereafter, the maximum amount payable by the retirement system as provided in this paragraph shall be increased by 4 percent, compounded on previous increases.]~~

19 New Sections; Retirement System; Return to Work; Statement Required. Amend RSA 100-A by inserting after section 27 the following new sections:

100-A:27-a Return to Work; Suspension of Benefits. Beginning January 1, 2012, no person shall be hired into a full-time position for which membership is required under RSA 100-A:3, or hired into a full-time state position for which membership is optional under RSA 100-A:3, I, while concurrently receiving a retirement benefit under this chapter. Benefits shall be suspended during any such period of employment. No person who retires after January 1, 2012 and is receiving retirement benefits under this chapter shall within 6 months of his or her retirement be employed by the state or another participating employer.

100-A:27-b Statement Required. The retirement system shall provide to employers a form to be signed, dated, and submitted by persons hired by the employer containing a statement establishing that the person is not currently receiving an allowance under this chapter. Employers shall submit such forms to the retirement system.

20 Repeal. 2002, 137:7, relative to the application of the repeal of former RSA 100-A:3, I(c), is repealed.

21 Transfer Required; Retirement System. The board of trustees of the retirement system shall forthwith transfer the sum of \$89,000,000 from the group II components of the special account established under RSA 100-A:16, II(h) to the state annuity accumulation fund.

22 Study Committee Established; Voluntary Defined Contribution Plan. There is established a committee to study the establishment of a federal tax qualified voluntary defined contribution plan.

I. The members of the committee shall be as follows:

(a) One member of the senate, who shall be from the executive departments and administration committee, appointed by the president of the senate.

(b) Three members of the house of representatives, each of whom shall be from the executive departments and administration committee, appointed by the speaker of the house of representatives.

II. Members of the committee shall receive mileage at the legislative rate when attending to the duties of the committee.

III. The members of the study committee shall elect a chairperson from among the members. The first meeting of the committee shall be called by the senate member. The first meeting of the committee shall be held within 45 days of the effective date of this section. Three members of the committee shall constitute a quorum.

IV. The committee shall report its findings and any recommendations for proposed legislation to the president of the senate, the speaker of the house of representatives, the senate clerk, the house clerk, the governor, and the state library on or before November 1, 2011.

23 Repeal. The following are repealed:

I. RSA 100-A:16, III-a, relative to employer assessments for excess benefits paid by employers in the retirement system, is repealed.

II. RSA 100-A:4-b, relative to group I employees and teachers purchase of credit for out-of-state service.

III. RSA 100-A:4-c, relative to group II members purchase of credit for out-of state service.

24 Severability. If any provision of this act or the application of such provision to any person or circumstance is held invalid or is deemed not to comply with applicable law or regulations of the Internal Revenue Service so as to jeopardize the retirement system's status as a qualified governmental pension plan, the invalidity or non-compliance does not affect other provisions or applications of the act which can be given effect without the invalid provisions or applications, and to this end the provisions of this act are severable.

25 Applicability; Contingent Amendment. If any provision in sections 1-10 of this act is found by the New Hampshire Supreme Court to be invalid as to active members of the New Hampshire Retirement System on the effective date of this act, section 26 shall take effect for the first payroll period beginning 10 days from the date of such decision. The board of trustees of the retirement system shall certify to the secretary of state and the director of legislative services the date of such occurrence.

26 Member Contribution Rates; Contingent Version. The introductory paragraph of RSA 100-A:16, I(a) and the contribution rates following the introductory paragraph are repealed and reenacted to read as follows:

(a) The member annuity savings fund shall be a fund in which shall be accumulated the contributions deducted from the compensation of members to provide for their member annuities together with any amounts transferred thereto from a similar fund under one or more of the predecessor systems. Such contribution shall be, for each member, dependent upon the member's employment classification at the rate determined in accordance with the following table:

Group I members, 8.00.

Group II members, 12.30.

27 Effective Date.

I. Sections 1, 2, and 4-18 of this act shall take effect July 1, 2011.

II. Sections 19 and 20 of this act shall take effect January 1, 2012.

III. Section 3 of this act shall take effect July 1, 2016.

IV. Section 26 of this act shall take effect as provided in section 25 of this act.

V. The remainder of this act shall take effect upon its passage.

2011-0701s

AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill makes various changes to the state retirement system including:

I. Increasing retirement ages of group II members for service retirement, disability retirement, vested deferred retirement, and split benefits.

II. Changing the definitions of earnable compensation and average final compensation used in calculating retirement benefits.

III. Changing the composition of the board of trustees.

IV. Eliminating the special account.

V. Eliminating the retirement system funding of medical benefits premium payments.

VI. Increasing contribution rates.

VII. Establishing a voluntary defined contribution plan administered by the board of trustees.

VIII. Limits when a member in service may concurrently receive benefits.

Senate Ways and Means

March 7, 2011

2011-0688s

09/10

Amendment to SB 56-FN

Amend the title of the bill by replacing it with the following:

AN ACT authorizing the department of revenue administration to accept credit card and debit card payments of taxes.

Amend the bill by replacing section 1 with the following:

1 New Section; Credit or Debit Card Payment. Amend RSA 21-J by inserting after section 43 the following new section:

21-J:43-a Credit or Debit Card Payment. The commissioner of the department of revenue administration and any authorized employee or agent of the commissioner may accept credit cards or debit cards in the payment of any of the taxes, penalties, interest, or fees administered by the commissioner or collected by the department. The department may add to the amount due, in addition to any tax, penalties, and interest payable, a service charge for the acceptance of the credit card or debit card, as approved by the department. The department, at the time of billing, shall disclose the amount of the service charge. The commissioner shall adopt rules, pursuant to RSA 541-A, as necessary for the administration of such electronic transactions.

2011-0688s

AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill authorizes the department of revenue administration to accept credit card and debit card payments of taxes.

Senate Ways and Means

March 7, 2011

2011-0686s

09/01

Amendment to SB 58-FN-A

Amend RSA 77-E:1, XIV(a)(4) as inserted by section 3 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

(4) A qualified community development entity as defined in section 45D of the United States Internal Revenue Code, which entity is owned, controlled, or managed, directly or indirectly, by the business finance authority of the state of New Hampshire.

Amend the bill by inserting after section 3 the following and renumbering the original section 4 to read as 5:

4 Applicability. This act shall apply with respect to all taxable periods ending on or after December 31, 2010.

Energy and Natural Resources

March 10, 2011

2011-0787s

10/05

Amendment to SB 105

Amend the title of the bill by replacing it with the following:

AN ACT exempting highway trail crossing from evaluation requirements for certain all terrain and trail bike trails.

Amend the bill by replacing all after the enacting clause with the following:

1 Bureau of Trails; Responsibilities; Highway Trail Crossings. Amend RSA 215-A:3, VI to read as follows:

VI. The supervisor of the bureau shall receive all written requests from persons applying for permission to establish a highway trail crossing or trail connector on any class I, class II or class III highway for any OHRV trail or cross country ski trail on which an OHRV trail maintenance vehicle may operate. The requests shall be submitted by the supervisor to the commissioner of the department of transportation or the commissioner's representative for the department's approval or disapproval. If approval is granted, the commissioner of the department of transportation may post the area with appropriate signs designating the location of the trail crossing or trail connector and providing signs for both sides of the highway at an appropriate distance from the crossing or trail connector to warn the motoring public of said crossing or trail connector. ***Highway trail crossing requests and approvals under this paragraph shall be exempt from the provisions of RSA 215-A:42 and RSA 215-A:43.***

2 Effective Date. This act shall take effect upon its passage.

2011-0787s

AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill clarifies that highway trail crossings received by the bureau of trails and approved by the department of transportation are exempt from the evaluation process required in establishing certain state trails for ATVs and trail bikes.

Senate Education

March 8, 2011

2011-0714s

04/10

Amendment to SB 117

Amend the bill by replacing all after the enacting clause with the following:

1 Postsecondary Education Commission; Rulemaking Authority. Amend the introductory paragraph of RSA 188-D:8-a to read as follows:

188-D:8-a Rulemaking Authority. The executive director~~[-in consultation with the postsecondary education commission]~~ shall adopt rules pursuant to RSA 541-A relative to:

2 Regulation of Private Postsecondary Career Schools; Definitions; Exclusions. RSA 188-D:19 is repealed and reenacted to read as follows:

188-D:19 Definitions; Exclusions.

I. The following definitions shall apply in this subdivision except as otherwise provided:

(a) "Alternative delivery" means a mode of instruction, which does not involve face-to-face instruction between instructor and student in the same geographic location. This mode of instruction shall include Internet, televised, video, telephonic, and correspondence media.

(b) "Entity" means any individual, firm, partnership, association, corporation, organization, trust, school, or other legal entity or combination of these entities.

(c) "Executive committee" means the executive committee of the postsecondary education commission as defined in the postsecondary education commission bylaws.

(d) "Executive director" means the executive director of the postsecondary education commission, or designee.

(e) "Instructor" means any person who teaches, trains, or educates students.

(f) "Occupational" means related to an occupation or vocation.

(g) "Physical presence" means any physical location, place of contact, telephone exchange, or mail drop in this state, and if an individual is conducting one or more of the following activities within this state:

(1) Advertising.

(2) Solicitation of potential students.

- (3) Enrollment of students.
- (4) Providing student services.
- (5) Student mentoring.
- (6) Instruction of students.

(h) “Private postsecondary career school” means any for-profit or nonprofit, non-degree granting, postsecondary career entity maintaining a physical presence in this state and providing vocational or occupational education or training for tuition or a fee to the public. Private and postsecondary career schools that offer resident or non-resident programs, including programs using modes of alternative delivery, beyond the secondary school level to the public shall be included in this definition regardless of the fact that the school’s tuition and fees from education and training programs constitute only a part of the school’s revenue.

(i) “Student” means any person enrolled in a course or program at a private postsecondary career school.

(j) “Vocational” means related to an occupation or vocation.

II. “Private postsecondary career school” shall not include barbering or cosmetology schools, schools offering training that has been approved by a state agency with appropriate jurisdiction over such training, including but not limited to the plumber’s board, the electrician’s board, the office of the state fire marshal, the division of fire standards and training and emergency medical services, and schools providing federally-required flight or ground instruction to students.

3 Private Postsecondary Career Schools; Licenses and Fees. Amend RSA 188-D:20 to read as follows:

188-D:20 Licenses and Fees.

I. Prior to registering or renewing a business or trade name, or soliciting students for enrollment, an entity maintaining a physical presence in this state shall be reviewed by the executive director to determine if the entity requires a license. The executive director~~[-in consultation with the postsecondary education commission;]~~ shall establish procedures to accomplish this review.

II. ~~[A]~~ **Any** private postsecondary career school maintaining a physical presence in this state **and which assesses tuition or fees for providing vocational or occupational training** shall register to obtain a license or license renewal from the postsecondary education commission. The license shall be issued or renewed pursuant to rules, adopted under RSA 541-A, by the executive director~~[-in consultation with the postsecondary education commission]~~. The rules shall establish minimum criteria, including but not limited to, financial stability, educational program, administrative and staff qualifications, business procedures, facilities, equipment, and ethical practices to be met by licensees, and criteria for rejecting a licensing applicant and for suspending or revoking a license.

III. A school that is not required to obtain a license may apply for a license and, upon issuance of the license, shall be subject to the provisions of RSA 188-D:19 through RSA 188-D:28. Such school may voluntarily surrender its license and revert to its original status.

IV. The executive director~~[-in consultation with the postsecondary education commission;]~~ shall adopt rules pursuant to RSA 541-A to establish reasonable fines, reimbursement rates for consultants, and procedures for complaint investigations and enforcement actions, which are necessary for the administration of this subdivision.

V. A private postsecondary career school which the executive director has determined requires a license shall, prior to the issuance of a license, comply with RSA 188-D:20, RSA 188-D:20-a, and RSA 188-D:20-b.

4 Private Postsecondary Career Schools; Surety Indemnification. Amend RSA 188-D:20-a, IV(b) to read as follows:

(b) A term deposit account held in the state treasury, payable to the postsecondary education commission, shall be held in trust for the benefit of students entitled thereto under this section. Said account shall be maintained for the licensing period as a minimum, in an amount determined by the postsecondary education commission. ~~[Any interest shall be paid annually to the appropriate school, unless the term deposit account is activated due to a school closing.]~~ **The licensee, subject to the approval of the executive director, may replace the term deposit with either a bond or an irrevocable letter of credit. After receipt of the appropriate indemnification, the term deposit plus any accrued interest shall be returned to the licensee.** Should the licensee for any reason, while not in default, discontinue operation, all moneys on deposit, including any interest, shall be released to the appropriate school subject to the approval of the executive director.

5 Private Postsecondary Career Schools; Student Tuition Guaranty Fund. Amend RSA 188-D:20-b to read as follows:

188-D:20-b Student Tuition Guaranty Fund.

I.(a) A student tuition guaranty fund is hereby established within the postsecondary education commission and shall be administered by the executive director.

(b) The fund shall be funded from an annual fee to be established by the executive director and assessed against each school duly licensed by the postsecondary education commission and all applicants for a license under RSA 188-D:20.

(c) The funds shall be placed in an interest-bearing account in the office of the state treasurer and the state treasurer shall deposit all interest earned on the funds into the account. ***These funds shall be nonlapsing and continually appropriated to the postsecondary education commission.***

(d) The fund shall be used to reimburse students when a school has failed to faithfully perform its contractual obligations for tuition and instructional fees in the event of a school closing, and the expense of investigating and processing the claims. ~~[The owner of]~~ A school which fails to perform its contractual obligations shall be ~~[personally]~~ liable to reimburse the fund for the difference between the per student amount paid into the fund by the school and the amount paid out of the fund to a student to settle a claim made against the school.

(e) A school's surety bond, irrevocable letter of credit, or other approved form of indemnification shall be exhausted prior to the use of any funds from the student tuition guaranty fund.

II. The executive director~~[- in consultation with the postsecondary education commission,]~~ shall adopt rules, pursuant to RSA 541-A, relative to the administration and maintenance of the fund.

III. The executive director may establish guidelines for exempting schools from providing surety indemnification and from paying into the student tuition guaranty fund, provided the executive director determines that there are sufficient funds in the student tuition guaranty fund for disbursement in the event of a school closure. The executive director shall not grant such an exemption to any school until the school has paid into the student tuition guaranty fund for at least 5 years and is in good standing with the postsecondary education commission. An exemption granted to a school may be revoked if the executive director determines that the student tuition guaranty fund balance is insufficient for disbursement in the event of a school closing.

6 Regulation of Private Postsecondary Career Schools; Revocation. Amend RSA 188-D:22 to read as follows:

188-D:22 Revocation; Hearing. The executive committee~~[- in consultation with the postsecondary education commission]~~ may, after due notice and hearing, revoke the license of any school licensed pursuant to RSA 188-D:20 for violating the provisions of this subdivision or rules adopted hereunder. The provisions of RSA 541 shall apply to actions taken pursuant to this section.

7 Private Postsecondary Career Schools; Use of Fees. Amend RSA 188-D:25 to read as follows:

188-D:25 Use of Fees. Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, all license fees collected under the provisions of this subdivision shall be ~~[retained by]~~ ***deposited in a nonlapsing account within the postsecondary education commission which shall be continually appropriated to the commission*** for use in meeting the expenses of administering this subdivision.

8 Regulation of Private Postsecondary Career Schools; Rulemaking. Amend RSA 188-D:26 to read as follows:

188-D:26 Rulemaking Authority. The executive director ~~[in consultation with the postsecondary education commission]~~ shall adopt such rules, pursuant to RSA 541-A, as may be necessary in order to carry out the provisions of this subdivision.

9 Repeal. The following are repealed:

I. 2004; 190:6, relative to the contingent repeal of the surety indemnification to be provided by private postsecondary career schools.

II. 2004; 190:7, relative to the written certification required for the contingent repeal in 2004; 190:6 to take effect.

10 Effective Date. This act shall take effect 60 days after its passage.

Senate Ways and Means
 March 7, 2011
 2011-0687s
 08/09

Amendment to SB 136-FN

Amend the bill by replacing all after the enacting clause with the following:

1 Unclaimed Ticket Vouchers. Amend RSA 284:31 to read as follows:

284:31 Unclaimed Ticket Money. On or before January 31 of each year every person, association, or corporation conducting a race or race meet, whether live racing or simulcast racing, hereunder shall pay to the state treasurer all moneys collected during the previous year of pari-mutuel pool tickets *and vouchers* which have not been redeemed. The books or records of said person, association, or corporation, which clearly show the tickets entitled to reimbursement in any given race, live or simulcast, shall be forwarded to the commission. Such moneys shall become a part of the general funds of the state. The state treasurer shall pay the amount due on any ticket *or voucher* to the holder thereof from funds not otherwise appropriated upon an order from the commission. Pari-mutuel tickets *and vouchers* which remain unclaimed after 11 months shall not be paid. *Vouchers shall be remitted to the state treasurer on January 31 of the calendar year, 24 months after the year of the unclaimed voucher.*

2 Definitions; Game Operator. Amend RSA 287-D:1, V to read as follows:

V. "Game operator" means:

(a) "Primary game operator" which means any consultant or any person other than a bona fide member of the charitable organization, involved in conducting, managing, supervising, directing, or running the games of chance; or

(b) "Secondary game operator" which means any person other than a bona fide member of the charitable organization, involved in dealing, running a roulette wheel, [or] handling chips, *or providing accounting services or security functions.*

(c) *"Game operator employer" means a primary game operator or a business entity who employs, supervises, and controls game operators and who is hired by a charitable organization to operate games of chance on its behalf. The owner, partner, managing member, or chief executive of a business entity who serves as a game operator employer must be licensed as a primary game operator.*

3 Operation of Games of Chance; Game Operators. Amend RSA 287-D:2-b, I(d) to read as follows:

(d) Notwithstanding subparagraph (a), all charitable organizations that conduct games of chance for charitable purposes may employ, by means of a written agreement, a [primary] game operator *employer or a primary game operator* licensed under RSA 287-D:2-c to operate games of chance on their behalf.

4 Operation of Games of Chance; Game Operators. Amend RSA 287-D:2-d, III to read as follows:

III. An applicant for a primary game operator license under RSA 287-D:2-c shall apply to the racing and charitable gaming commission, and if the applicant meets all other requirements of this chapter and pays the fee established by the racing and charitable gaming commission in rules adopted pursuant to RSA 541-A, a license shall be issued. A *primary game operator* license issued under RSA 287-D:2-c shall expire on December 31. The racing and charitable gaming commission shall notify the attorney general and police chief of any city or town where games of chance are held of any applications approved. RSA 7:28-c shall not apply to game operator licensees subject to this chapter. An applicant for a secondary game operator license under RSA 287-D:2-c shall apply to the racing and charitable gaming commission, and if the applicant meets all other requirements of this chapter and pays the fee established by the racing and charitable gaming commission in rules adopted pursuant to RSA 541-A, which shall not exceed \$45, a license shall be issued. *A secondary game operator license issued under RSA 284-D:2-c shall expire on the last day of the month of the licensee's birthday.*

5 Operation of Games of Chance; Game Operators. Amend RSA 287-D:2-d, VI to read as follows:

VI. Any license issued under RSA 287-D:2-a or RSA 287-D:2-c shall not be transferable and the fees for the license shall not be refunded except for good cause shown as specified in rules adopted by the racing and

charitable gaming commission. ***Nothing in this section shall prevent a licensee from working for different licensed entities. A licensee who works for more than one game operator employer during the licensed period shall have a separate badge for each game operator employer and pay a separate fee for each badge.***

6 Bond; Game Operators. Amend RSA 287-D:2-b, VIII to read as follows:

VIII.(a) On game dates where the charitable organization operates the games, the charitable organization shall deposit cash and proceeds from a game of chance into the account required by RSA 287-D:2-a, VII(e). All expenses, including ~~[prizes of more than \$500]~~ ***prizes of \$500 or more*** and equipment and hall rental fees shall be paid by check from the account required by RSA 287-D:2-a, VII(e). The treasurer of the charitable organization shall document all prizes awarded as prescribed in rules adopted by the racing and charitable gaming commission.

(b) On game dates where the licensed game operator operates the games, the licensed game operator shall deposit cash and proceeds from a game of chance into the account required by RSA 287-D:2-c, VI. All expenses, including ~~[prizes of more than \$500 and]~~ equipment and hall rental fees shall be paid by check ***or electronic fund transfers*** from the account established in RSA 287-D:2-c, VI. The licensed game operator shall document all prizes awarded as prescribed in rules adopted by the racing and charitable gaming commission. ***Prizes of \$500 or more shall be paid by check from the account established in RSA 287-D:2-c, VI.***

7 Bond; Game Operators. Amend RSA 287-D:2-c, V to read as follows:

V. Prior to conducting any games of chance, the game operator or the game operator's employer shall submit a bond for each location where the game operator is conducting games of chance, conditioned upon the game operator running games of chance in conformity with this chapter and with the rules and regulations prescribed by the racing and charitable gaming commission, in the amount of up to ~~[\$300,000]~~ ***\$500,000 but not less than \$25,000*** to the racing and charitable gaming commission with the application form. ***The amount of the bond in excess of \$25,000 established for each licensee shall be based on that licensee's normal outstanding obligations of charity payments and state taxes.***

8 New Paragraph; Licensing of Game Operators. Amend RSA 287-D:2-c by inserting after paragraph VII the following new paragraph:

VIII. Unless a provision to the contrary is part of a written agreement in place prior to the commencement of a game date between the charitable organization and the game operator or game operator employer, all moneys due to the charitable organization shall be paid over to the organization no later than 5 business days following the date on which a game was conducted. Notwithstanding the provisions of any agreement with the charitable organization, the game operator or game operator employer shall pay over all moneys due to the charitable organization no later than 15 business days following a game date.

9 Wagering; Game Operators. Amend RSA 287-D:3, VII to read as follows:

VII. Unless a charitable organization rents a facility from a ~~[primary]~~ game operator ***employer or a primary game operator*** licensed under RSA 287-D:2-c, the charitable organization shall only rent a facility by means of a fixed rental payment. The fixed rental payment shall not be based on a percentage of what the charitable organization receives from the game of chance and it shall reflect fair rental value of the property for any use not just as a place to hold a game of chance. If a charitable organization rents a facility from a licensed game operator under RSA 287-D:2-c, the charitable organization shall retain no less than 35 percent of the gross revenues from any games of chance minus any prizes paid in accordance with RSA 287-D:3, VIII. Any rental agreement entered into by the charitable organization shall be submitted with the charitable organization's license application for review by the racing and charitable gaming commission. Under no circumstances shall a charitable organization sustain any loss from games of chance, such that its share of the gross revenues minus any prizes paid is less than zero dollars, during a license period with a single game operator.

10 Wagering; Game Operators. Amend RSA 287-D:5, I to read as follows:

I. A charitable organization ~~[or]~~, a licensed ~~[primary]~~ game operator ***employer, or a primary game operator*** under contract to conduct games of chance on behalf of a charitable organization ***and designated by the charitable organization to be responsible for submitting financial reports*** shall submit a complete financial report for all game dates licensed under RSA 287-D:2 and RSA 287-D:2-a to the racing and charitable gaming commission on forms approved by the racing and charitable gaming commission within 15 days of the end of each month during which a game of chance was held.

11 Operation of Bingo Games; Penalty Added. Amend RSA 287-E:7, XVI to read as follows:

XVI. In not more than one game conducted in accordance with ~~[RSA 287-E:7;]~~ **paragraph XIII**, a carry-over, cover-all game may be run with the prize money rolled over to the successive game dates in the event that there is no winner on the original or preceding game dates. Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, the prize money may accumulate until there is a winner. The prize shall be awarded to any winner covering all 24 numbers on the card in less than 50 numbers, or a greater number if so designated prior to the game. If there is no winner on a given game date, a pre-designated consolation prize shall be awarded to the game winner who first achieves cover-all. The balance of the ~~[monies]~~ **moneys** collected shall be carried over to subsequent game dates until there is a winner. **Any person who purposely, knowingly, or recklessly deprives a charitable organization of any of its moneys collected from bingo or lucky 7 or any person who purposely, knowingly, or recklessly deprives players of any prizes collected from bingo or lucky 7, shall be guilty of a class A felony.**

12 Reference Change; Financial Reports and Inspection Required. Amend RSA 287-E:9, I to read as follows:

I. A charitable organization which has been licensed to conduct bingo games shall submit a complete financial report to the commission for each license issued under RSA 287-E:6 within 15 days after the expiration of each license; provided, however, a complete monthly financial report shall be submitted in a timely fashion to the commission for each month covered by a license issued under ~~[RSA 287-E:6, I-a]~~ **RSA 287-E:6, II.**

13 Reference Change; Financial Reports and Inspection Required. Amend RSA 287-E:9, IV to read as follows:

IV. All charitable organizations licensed under this chapter shall maintain a separate checking account for the deposit and disbursement of all income relating to bingo and lucky 7, except cash prizes awarded at the games. All expenses shall be paid by check, ~~[and all prizes of \$500 or more shall be paid by check]~~ **or electronic funds transfers. All prizes of \$500 or more shall be paid by check.** There shall be no commingling of bingo and lucky 7 funds with other funds of the charitable organization. The organization shall retain all cancelled checks for the payment of expenses and prizes for at least 2 years. The organization may cash checks which it issues.

14 Campground Bingo. Amend RSA 287-E:12 to read as follows:

287-E:12 Bingo ~~[License]~~ for Private Campgrounds and Hotels. Any private campground or hotel may ~~[apply to the commission for a special campground or hotel bingo license. Licenses may be granted under the following conditions]~~ **conduct bingo games provided:**

~~I.~~ The bingo license application fee shall be \$25 per year and shall be nonrefundable.

~~H.~~ The provisions of RSA 287-E:6, IV and RSA 287-E:7, IV and VI relating to bingo licenses and the operation of games for charitable organizations shall also apply to licenses issued under this section.

~~HH.]~~ **I.** The price to be paid for a single card or play under the license shall be \$.10.

~~IV.~~ A license shall permit no more than 2 game dates of bingo in any one calendar week and shall be issued on an annual basis.

~~V.]~~ **II.** All revenues received from the sale of bingo cards in any game or series of games on any one calendar day shall be paid out to the players. The total value of all prizes, tokens, or awards used, given, offered, or awarded in connection with any game or series of games in any calendar day shall not exceed \$500.

~~VI.]~~ **III.** Games shall be operated only by persons on the staff of the campground or hotel ~~[holding the license under this section]~~. Such staff shall operate the games without compensation from the bingo revenues.

~~VH.]~~ **IV.** The games of bingo shall be open only to persons 18 years of age or older who are bona fide guests at the campground or hotel.

~~VIII.]~~ Licenses shall be granted only to campgrounds or hotels in cities or towns which have approved bingo under RSA 287-E.

~~IX.]~~ **V.** No campground or hotel shall act as an agent for operating games of bingo when it is unlawful for such campground's or hotel's principal to operate bingo games.

~~X.]~~ The campground or hotel holding the license issued under this section shall keep records and submit a report as required for agricultural fairs under RSA 287-E:10, VIII, except that the report shall be submitted to the commission within 15 days of the expiration of the bingo license. The report shall include the names and addresses of persons from whom bingo equipment was rented or leased.

~~XI.]~~ **VI.** The campground or hotel shall have been in existence for at least 2 years in the city or town in which the bingo games are to be conducted.

~~[XH. The campground or hotel shall be in compliance at the time of application with all applicable state and local requirements for the operation of private campgrounds or hotels.]~~

~~XHH.]~~ **VII.** The campground or hotel shall maintain a current list of bona fide guests.

~~[XIV.]~~ **VIII.** The campground or hotel shall not have been established solely for the purpose of operating bingo games.

15 Campground Bingo. Amend the introductory paragraph RSA 287-E:13 to read as follows:

Any campground or hotel ~~[holding a license under RSA 287-E:12]~~ may conduct special bingo games for children under the conditions specified in RSA 287-E:12, except:

16 Payment to Distributor. Amend RSA 287-E:23-a to read as follows:

287-E:23-a Payment to Distributor. Licensees shall pay for purchased tickets no later than 30 *calendar* days after delivery. ***Unless a waiver is given by the commission for good cause shown, no charitable organization may purchase tickets from a different distributor when that charitable organization has failed to comply with the provisions of this section.***

17 Financial Reports and Inspection Required. Amend RSA 287-E:24, IV to read as follows:

IV. All expenses ***shall be paid by check, or electronic funds transfers***, and all cash prizes ~~[over]~~ of \$500 ***or more*** shall be paid by check, and the charitable organization shall retain cancelled checks ***or bank produced facsimiles of cancelled checks*** for the payment of expenses and ***checks or bank produced facsimiles of checks and receipts for the payment of prizes*** for a period of 2 years.

18 Pari-Mutuel Breakage; Cross Reference. Amend RSA 284:22-a, VII to read as follows:

VIII. RSA 284:22, I, II, ***and*** III, ~~[and IV]~~ shall apply according to the type of race on which the simulcast wagers are made, excepting, however, interstate common pools as provided in RSA 284:22-a, V(b) and that the provisions made for purses made in RSA 284:22, I shall not apply to simulcast races. The commission on simulcast race pools shall be available to the simulcasting licensee to satisfy obligations to the racing association originating or transmitting such simulcast races or to the horsemen's group of such association.

19 Campground Bingo. Amend RSA 287-E:4, II to read as follows:

II. Such fee shall be submitted to the commission at the time the application for a bingo license is filed and ~~[, except as provided in RSA 287-E:12],~~ shall be refunded if the application is denied.

20 Racing Purses. Amend RSA 284:22, I-II to read as follows:

I. The commission on all win, place, and show pari-mutuel pools at tracks or race meets at which running horse races are conducted for public exhibition shall be uniform throughout the state at the rate of 19 percent of each dollar wagered in such pools, and the commission on all other pari-mutuel pools at such tracks or race meets shall be at the rate of not less than 26 percent of each dollar wagered in such pools and not more than 27 percent of each dollar wagered in such pools as determined from time to time by the licensee which conducts live running horse races after written notice to the commission and, in the absence of written notice, at the rate of 26 percent of each dollar wagered in such pools. Except as provided in RSA 284:22-a, the amount of the purse at such tracks or race meets at which running horse races are conducted shall be 8 1/4 percent of each dollar wagered in all pari-mutuel pools, said 8 1/4 percent to be paid by the licensee out of the commission on such pools. In addition to the above commission, 1/2 of the odd cents of all redistribution based on each dollar wagered exceeding a sum equal to the next lowest multiple of 10, known as "breakage", shall be retained by the licensee, 1/4 paid to the state treasury for the use of the state in accordance with the provisions of RSA 284:2 and 1/4 shall be paid to the racing and charitable gaming commission. The racing and charitable gaming commission shall distribute such breakage to the licensee which paid such breakage ~~[to supplement purses of live races conducted by the licensee at the location from which such breakage was paid].~~ Each licensee shall pay the tax provided for in RSA 284:23.

II. The commission on all win, place, and show pari-mutuel pools at tracks or race meets at which harness horse races are conducted for public exhibition, including those conducted by agricultural fairs, shall be uniform throughout the state at the rate of 19 percent of each dollar wagered in such pools, and the commis-

sion on all other pari-mutuel pools at such tracks or race meets shall be at the rate of not less than 25 percent of each dollar wagered in such pools and not more than 26 percent of each dollar wagered in such pools as determined from time to time by the licensee which conducts live harness horse racing after written notice to the commission and, in the absence of such written notice, at the rate of 25 percent of each dollar wagered in such pools. In addition to the above commission, 1/2 of the odd cents of all redistribution based on each dollar wagered exceeding a sum equal to the next lowest multiple of 10, known as "breakage", shall be retained by the licensee, 1/4 paid to the state treasury for the use of the state in accordance with the provisions of RSA 284:2 and 1/4 shall be paid to the racing and charitable gaming commission. The racing and charitable gaming commission shall distribute such breakage ~~[to the licensee which paid such breakage]~~. Each licensee shall pay the tax provided for in RSA 284:23.

21 Repeal. RSA 284:22, IV relative to breakage on pari-mutuel pools, is repealed.

22 Effective Date. This act shall take effect 60 days after its passage.

2011-0687s

AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill:

I. Defines game operator employers.

II. Requires that game operators pay charities participating in charitable gaming no later than 15 business days following a game date.

III. Raises the amount of bond required for conducting games of chance.

IV. Requires charitable organizations to collect certain fees on lucky 7 deals and pay them to the racing and charitable gaming commission.

V. Allows private campgrounds and hotels to conduct certain bingo games without a license.

VI. Allows the racing and charitable gaming commission to distribute breakage to pari-mutuel licensees without consideration of live racing.

Health and Human Services

March 10, 2011

2011-0790s

01/09

Amendment to SB 147-FN

Amend the bill by replacing all after the enacting clause with the following:

1 New Paragraph; Medicaid Managed Care. Amend RSA 126-A:5 by inserting after paragraph XVIII the following new paragraph:

XIX.(a) The commissioner shall employ a managed care model for administering the Medicaid program and its enrollees to provide for managed care services for all Medicaid populations throughout as much of New Hampshire as practicable consistent with the provisions of 42 U.S.C. 1396r-2. Models for managed care may include, but not be limited to, a traditional capitated managed care organization contract, an administrative services organization, an accountable care organization, or a primary care case management model, or a combination thereof, offering the best value, quality assurance, and efficiency, maximizing the potential for savings, and presenting the most innovative approach compared to other externally administered models. The department shall present the opportunities of the various models or combination of models to the oversight committee on health and human services with a recommendation for the best managed care model for New Hampshire, no later than June 15, 2011. Services to be managed within the model shall include all mandatory Medicaid covered services and may include, but shall not be limited to, care coordination, utilization management, disease management, pharmacy benefit management, provider network management, quality management, and customer services. After consultation with the oversight committee, the commissioner shall issue a 5-year request for proposals to enter into a contract with the vendor or vendors that demonstrates the greatest ability to satisfy the state's need for value, quality, efficiency, innovation and savings. The request for proposals shall be released no later than October 1, 2011. The vendor or vendors of the managed care model or combination of models demonstrating the greatest ability to satisfy the state's need for value, quality, efficiency, innovation, and savings shall be selected no later than December 1, 2011 with a final contract submitted to the governor and council as soon

as practicable thereafter. After the bidding process, the commissioner shall establish a capitated rate based on the bids by the appropriate model for the contract that is full risk to the provider. The capitated rate shall be broken down into rate cells for each population including, but not limited to, the persons eligible for temporary assistance to needy families (TANF), aid for the permanently and totally disabled (APTD), breast and cervical cancer program (BCCP), home care for children with severe disabilities (HC-CSD), and those residing in nursing facilities. The capitated rate shall be approved by the fiscal committee of the general court. The managed care model or models' selected vendor or vendors providing the Medicaid services shall establish medical homes and all Medicaid recipients shall receive their care through a medical home. In contracting for a managed care model and the various rate cells, the department shall ensure no reduction in the quality of care of services provided to enrollees in the managed care model and shall exercise all due diligence to maintain or increase the current level of quality of care provided. The target date for implementation of the contract is July 1, 2012. The commissioner may, in consultation with the fiscal committee, adopt rules, if necessary, to implement the provisions of this paragraph. The department shall seek all necessary and appropriate waivers to implement the provisions of this paragraph.

(b) The department shall ensure that all eligible Medicaid members are enrolled in the managed care model under contract with the department no later than 12 months after the contract is awarded to the vendor or vendors of the managed care model.

(c) For the purposes of this paragraph:

(1) An "accountable care organization" means an entity or group which accepts responsibility for the cost and quality of care delivered to Medicaid patients cared for by its clinicians.

(2) "An administrative services organization" means an entity that contracts as an insurance company with a self-funded plan but where the insurance company performs administrative services only and the self-funded entity assumes all risk.

(3) A "managed care organization" means an entity that is authorized by law to provide covered health services on a capitated risk basis and arranges for the provision of medical assistance services and supplies and coordinates the care of Medicaid recipients residing in all areas of the state, including the elderly, those meeting federal supplemental security income and state standards for disability, and those who are also currently enrolled in Medicare. After the first 5 years, a "managed care organization" may include the department of health and human services, with the approval of the fiscal committee.

(4) "A primary care case management" means a system under which a primary care case management contracts with the state to furnish case management services, which include the location, coordination and monitoring of primary health care services, to Medicaid recipients.

2 Effective Date. This act shall take effect upon its passage.

2011-0790s

AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill requires the commissioner of the department of health and human services to issue a 5-year request for proposal to enter into a contract with a vendor or vendors of a managed care model after consultation with the oversight committee on health and human services to provide for managed care services to the Medicaid population. The commissioner, in consultation with the fiscal committee of the general court, is granted rulemaking authority for the purposes of this bill.

Health and Human Services

March 10, 2011

2011-0791s

09/01

Amendment to SB 151-FN

Amend the bill by replacing section 1 with the following:

1 Contract Consolidation; Department of Health and Human Services.

I. No later than January 1, 2012, the commissioner of the department of health and human services shall develop a plan to consolidate contracts of the department including, but not limited to, contracts for the acquisition of goods and services and for the provision of services to clients of the department. The plan shall be

provided for review and comment to the oversight committee on health and human services established pursuant to RSA 126-A:13. For the remainder of the biennium ending June 30, 2013, the commissioner shall provide reports on a quarterly basis to the oversight committee on implementation of the contract consolidation plan.

II. In addition, no later than January 1, 2012, the commissioner shall report the total number of full-time equivalent contract employees and the number of contractors employed at state-run facilities and shall submit such report to the oversight committee on health and human services.

2011-0791s

AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill requires the commissioner of the department of health and human service to develop a plan to consolidate all outside contracts and to provide the plan for review and comment to the oversight committee on health and human services.

Senate Executive Departments and Administration

March 9, 2011

2011-0759s

09/01

Amendment to SB 152-FN

Amend the bill by replacing all after the enacting clause with the following:

1 New Paragraphs; Members of the General Court; Insurance Participation. Amend RSA 14-A:6 by inserting after paragraph II the following new paragraphs:

III. The commissioner of the department of administrative services shall invoice and collect amounts due from members. Collected amounts shall be deposited in the employee and retiree benefit risk management fund.

IV. Failure to remit payment for participation pursuant to paragraph I of this section in full within 30 days of billing shall be grounds for terminating benefits, effective with the beginning of the billing period. Reenrollment shall be dependent upon payment of outstanding participation or other amounts.

V. Failure to remit payment in full for participation pursuant to paragraph II of this section within 30 days of billing shall be grounds for permanently terminating benefits effective upon the beginning of the billing period.

2 Effective Date. This act shall take effect 60 days after its passage.

2011-0759s

AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill allows the department of administrative services to invoice and collect payment for participation in the group insurance plan by members of the general court.

Senate Executive Departments and Administration

March 8, 2011

2011-0719s

10/01

Amendment to SB 153-FN

Amend the bill by replacing section 2 with the following:

2 New Paragraphs; Definitions. Amend RSA 310-B:2 by inserting after paragraph XV the following new paragraphs:

XVI. "Agency" means the New Hampshire real estate appraiser board, which is responsible for registering appraisal management companies under this act.

XVII. "Appraisal" means the practice of developing an opinion of the value of real property in conformance with the Uniform Standards for Professional Appraisal Practice as developed by the Appraisal Foundation.

XVIII. "Appraisal management company" means, in connection with valuing properties collateralizing mortgage loans or mortgages incorporated into a securitization, any external third party authorized either by a creditor of a consumer credit transaction secured by a consumer's principal dwelling or by an underwriter of, or other principal in, the secondary mortgage markets:

(a) To recruit, select, and retain appraisers;

(b) To contract with licensed and certified appraisers to perform appraisal assignments;

(c) To manage the process of having an appraisal performed, including providing administrative duties such as receiving appraisal orders and appraisal reports, submitting completed appraisal reports to creditors and underwriters, collecting fees from creditors and underwriters for services provided, and reimbursing appraisers for services performed; or

(d) To review and verify the work of appraisers.

XIX. "Appraisal review" means the act or process of developing and communicating an opinion about the quality of another appraiser's work that was performed as part of an appraisal assignment, except that a Quality Control Examination of an appraisal report shall not be an appraisal review.

XX. "Appraiser" means an individual who holds a license or certification as an appraiser and is expected to perform valuation services competently and in a manner that is independent, impartial, and objective.

XXI. "Appraiser panel" means a group of licensed or certified independent appraisers that have been selected to perform appraisal services for a third party.

XXII. "Controlling person" means:

(a) An officer director, or owner of greater than a 10 percent interest, of a corporation, partnership or other business entity, seeking to act as an appraisal management company in this state; or

(b) An individual employed, appointed, or authorized by an appraisal management company that has the authority to enter into a contractual relationship with other persons for the performance of services requiring registration as an appraisal management company and has the authority to enter into agreements with appraisers for the performance of appraisals; or

(c) An individual who possesses, directly or indirectly, the power to direct or cause the direction of the management or policies of an appraisal management company.

XXIII. "Person" means an individual, firm, partnership, limited partnership, limited liability company, association, corporation, or other group engaged in joint business activities, however organized.

XXIV. "Quality Control Examination" is an examination of an appraisal report for compliance and completeness including grammatical, typographical, or other similar errors.

XXV. "Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice" (USPAP) means the current standards of the appraisal profession, developed for appraisers and users of appraisal services by the Appraisal Standards Board of the Appraisal Foundation.

Amend the bill by inserting after section 7 the following and renumbering the original sections 8-19 to read as 9-20:

8 New Sections; Registration of Appraisal Management Companies. Amend RSA 310-B by inserting after section 12-a the following new sections:

310-B:12-b Registration of Appraisal Management Companies.

I. It is unlawful for a person to directly or indirectly engage in or attempt to engage in business as an appraisal management company or to advertise or hold itself out as engaging in or conducting business as an appraisal management company in this state without first obtaining a registration issued by the agency under the provisions of this chapter.

(a) An applicant for registration as an appraisal management company in this state shall submit to the agency an application on a form or forms prescribed by the agency.

(b) In the event a registration process is unavailable upon the effective date of this chapter, an appraisal management company already conducting business in this state may continue to conduct business in accordance with this chapter until the 120th day after a registration process becomes available.

II. An application for the registration required by paragraph I of this section shall include the following information:

(a) Name of the person seeking registration and the fictitious name or names (if any) under which it does business in any state;

- (b) Business address of the person seeking registration;
- (c) Phone contact information of the person seeking registration;
- (d) If the person is not a corporation that is domiciled in this state, the name and contact information for the company's agent for service of process in this state;
- (e) The name, address, and contact information for any individual or any corporation, partnership, or other business entity that owns 10 percent or more of the appraisal management company;
- (f) The name, address, and contact information for one controlling person designated as the main contact for all communication between the appraisal management company and the agency;
- (g) A certification that the person has a system and process in place to verify that an individual being added to the appraiser panel of the appraisal management company holds a license in good standing in this state under this chapter if a license or certification is required to perform appraisals;
- (h) A certification that the person requires appraisers completing appraisals at its request to comply with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) including the requirements for geographic and product competence;
- (i) A certification that the person has a system in place to verify that only licensed or certified appraisers are used for federally related transactions;
- (j) A certification that the person has a system in place to require that appraisals are conducted independently and free from inappropriate influence and coercion as required by the appraisal independence standards established under section 129E of the Truth in Lending Act, including the requirement that fee appraisers be compensated at a customary and reasonable rate when the appraisal management company is providing services for a consumer credit transaction secured by the principal dwelling of a consumer.
- (k) A certification that the person maintains a detailed record of each service request that it receives and the appraiser that performs the residential real estate appraisal services for the appraisal management company;
- (l) An irrevocable uniform consent to service of process, pursuant to RSA 310-B:12-c.
- (m) Any other information required by the agency which is reasonably necessary to implement this chapter.

III. An application for the renewal of a registration shall include substantially similar information required for the initial registration as noted in paragraph II, as determined by the agency.

IV. A registration granted by the agency pursuant to this chapter shall be valid for one year from the date on which it is issued.

310-B:12-b Appraisal Management Company Exemptions.

I. The provisions of this chapter shall not apply to an appraisal management company that is a subsidiary owned and controlled by a financial institution regulated by a federal financial institutions regulatory agency.

II. The provisions of this chapter shall not apply to a business entity that exclusively engages real estate appraisers on an employer and employee basis for the performance of all real property appraisal services in the normal course of its business, except to the extent federal law or regulation requires such entities to register with and be subject to supervision by a state appraiser certifying and licensing agency.

310-B:12-c Appraisal Management Company Consent to Service of Process. Each person applying for a registration as an appraisal management company that is not domiciled in this state shall complete an irrevocable uniform consent to service of process, as prescribed by the agency.

310-B:12-d Appraisal Management Company Fee.

I. The agency shall establish by rule or regulation a processing fee to be paid by each appraisal management company seeking registration under this chapter that is sufficient for the administration of the registration process.

II. A similar processing fee, may be charged by the agency in connection with the renewal of any registrations.

310-B:12-e Appraisal Management Company Owner Requirements.

I. An appraisal management company applying for registration in this state shall not:

(a) Be owned by any person who has had an appraiser license or certificate in this state or in any other state, refused, denied, cancelled, surrendered in lieu of revocation, or revoked, unless such license or certificate was subsequently granted or reinstated;

(b) Be more than 10 percent owned by a person who is not of good moral character, which for purposes of this section shall require that such person has not been convicted of, or entered a plea of nolo contendere to, a felony relating to the practice of appraisal, banking, mortgage lending or the provision of financial services, or any crime involving fraud, misrepresentation or moral turpitude.

II. For purposes of subparagraph I(b), each owner of more than 10 percent of an appraisal management company shall submit to a background investigation to be carried out by a law enforcement agency or other entity authorized by the agency.

310-B:12-f Appraisal Management Company Designated Contact. Each appraisal management company applying to the agency for registration in this state shall designate one controlling person who is an employee of the appraisal management company that will be the designated contact for all communication between the agency and the appraisal management company.

310-B:12-g Appraisal Management Company Appraiser Credentials.

I. An appraisal management company that applies to the agency for a registration to do business in this state as an appraisal management company shall not:

(a) Knowingly employ any individual to perform appraisal services, who has had a license or certificate to act as an appraiser in this state or in any other state, refused, denied, cancelled, surrendered in lieu of revocation, or revoked, unless such license or certificate was subsequently granted or reinstated;

(b) Knowingly enter into any independent contractor arrangement for the performance of appraisal services, in verbal, written, or other form, with any individual who has had a license or certificate to act as an appraiser in this state or in any other state, refused, denied, cancelled, surrendered in lieu of revocation, or revoked, unless such license or certificate was subsequently granted or reinstated.

II. Prior to assigning appraisal orders, an appraisal management company shall have a system in place to verify that a person being added to the appraiser panel holds the appropriate appraiser credential in good standing.

III. Each appraisal management company seeking to be registered in this state shall certify to the agency on an annual basis on a form prescribed by the agency that the appraisal management company has systems in place to verify that:

(a) An individual on the appraiser panel has not had a license or certification as an appraiser refused, denied, cancelled, revoked, or surrendered in lieu of a pending revocation in the previous 12 months, unless such license or certificate was subsequently granted or reinstated; and

(b) Only licensed or certified appraisers are used to complete appraisal assignments in connection with federally related transactions.

310-B:12-h Appraisal Management Company; Appraisal Review. Any employee of, or independent contractor to, an appraisal management company that performs a USPAP Standard 3 review of an appraisal report on property located in this state shall be an appraiser with the proper level of licensure issued by the agency. Quality control examinations are exempt from this requirement as they are not considered a Standard 3 review.

310-B:12-i Appraisal Management Company; Adherence to Standards.

I. Each appraisal management company seeking to be registered in this state shall certify to the agency on an annual basis that it requires appraisers completing appraisals at its request to comply with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice including the requirements for geographic and product competence.

II. Each appraisal management company seeking to be registered in this state shall certify to the agency on an annual basis that it has a system in place to require that appraisals are conducted independently and free from inappropriate influence and coercion as required by the appraisal independence standards

established under section 129E of the Truth in Lending Act, including the requirement that fee appraisers be compensated at a customary and reasonable rate when the appraisal management company is providing services for a consumer credit transaction secured by the principal dwelling of a consumer.

III. An appraisal management company shall not prohibit an appraiser from reporting the fee paid to the appraiser in the body of the appraisal report, however an appraisal management company may require an appraiser to present any such disclosure in a specified format and location.

310-B:12-j Appraisal Management Company; Recordkeeping. Each appraisal management company seeking to be registered in this state shall certify to the agency on an annual basis that it maintains a detailed record of each service request that it receives and the appraiser that performs the appraisal for the appraisal management company. Such records must be retained for a period of at least 5 years after an appraisal is completed or 2 years after final disposition of a judicial proceeding related to the assignment, whichever period expires later.

310-B:12-k Appraisal Management Company; Appraisal Reports.

I. An appraisal management company may not alter, modify, or otherwise change a completed appraisal report submitted by an appraiser without the appraiser's written consent, except as necessary to comply with regulatory mandates or legal requirements.

II. An appraisal management company may not use an appraisal report submitted by an independent appraiser, or any of the data or information contained therein, for any purpose other than its intended use without the appraiser's or the intended end user's written consent.

310-B:12-l Appraisal Management Company; Registration Number.

I. The agency shall issue a unique registration number to each appraisal management company registered in this state pursuant to this chapter.

II. The agency shall maintain a list of the appraisal management companies registered in this state and the registration numbers assigned to such persons.

III. An appraisal management company registered in this state shall disclose the registration number provided to it by the agency on the engagement documents presented to an appraiser.

310-B:12-m Appraisal Management Company; Unlawful Acts.

I. It shall be a violation of this chapter for any employee, partner, director, officer, or agent of an appraisal management company to:

(a) Influence or attempt to influence the development, reporting, result, or review of an appraisal through coercion, extortion, collusion, compensation, inducement, intimidation, bribery or in any other manner, including but not limited to:

(i) Withholding or threatening to withhold timely payment or partial payment for an appraisal with the exception of a substandard or noncompliant appraisal;

(ii) Withholding or threatening to withhold future business from an appraiser, or demoting, terminating or threatening to demote or terminate an appraiser;

(iii) Promising or implying that an appraiser may be given opportunities for future business, promotions, or increased compensation;

(iv) Conditioning an assignment of an appraisal or the payment of an appraisal fee or salary or bonus on the opinion, conclusion, or valuation to be reached, or on a preliminary estimate or opinion requested from an appraiser;

(v) Requesting that an appraiser provide an estimated, predetermined, or desired valuation in an appraisal, or provide estimated values or comparable sales at any time prior to the appraiser's completion of an appraisal;

(vi) Providing to an appraiser an anticipated, estimated, encouraged, or desired value for a subject property or a proposed or target amount to be loaned to the borrower, except that a copy of the sales contract for purchase transactions may be provided; and

(vii) Requiring an appraiser to prepare an appraisal report if the appraiser has indicated to the appraisal management company that he or she does not have the necessary expertise for the specific geographic area.

(b) Require an appraiser to indemnify the appraisal management company against liability, damages, losses, or claims other than those liabilities, damages, losses or claims arising out of the services performed by the appraiser, including performance or non-performance of the appraiser's duties and obligations, whether as a result of negligence or willful misconduct.

(c) Submit or attempt to submit false, misleading, or inaccurate information in any application for registration or renewal;

(d) Fail to timely respond to any subpoena or any other legally-binding request for information;

(e) Fail to timely obey a lawful administrative order of the agency; or

(f) Fail to fully cooperate in any agency investigation.

II. Notwithstanding any other provision in this chapter, an appraisal management company shall not be prohibited from requesting that an appraiser:

(a) Consider additional appropriate property information;

(b) Provide additional information concerning the basis for an evaluation; or

(c) Correct objective factual errors in an appraisal report.

310-B:12-n Appraisal Management Company; Mandatory Reporting. An appraisal management company that has a reasonable basis to believe an appraiser has failed to comply with applicable laws, the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice or other ethical or professional requirements in connection with a consumer credit transaction secured by a consumer's principal dwelling, shall refer the matter to the agency if the failure to comply is material. For purposes of this section, a failure to comply is material if it is likely to significantly affect the value assigned to the consumer's principal dwelling.

310-B:12-o Appraisal Management Company; Rulemaking Authority. The agency may adopt rules consistent with the provisions of this chapter that are reasonably necessary to implement, administer, and enforce the provisions of this chapter.

Amend RSA 310-B:16-a, IV as inserted by section 12 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

IV. The requirements of this section shall take effect to appraisal management companies beginning the later of:

(a) January 1, 2012; or

(b) 120 days after the first date on which all rules, forms and policies necessary to implement this chapter have been finalized and made available by the agency. No unregistered appraisal management company may perform services related to a federally related transaction in the New Hampshire after January 1, 2012.

Energy and Natural Resources

March 10, 2011

2011-0788s

06/09

Amendment to SB 154-FN

Amend the title of the bill by replacing it with the following:

AN ACT reforming and renaming the comprehensive shoreland protection act.

Amend the bill by replacing all after the enacting clause with the following:

1 Shoreland Water Quality Protection Act. Amend the chapter heading of RSA 483-B to read as follows:

CHAPTER 483-B

[COMPREHENSIVE] SHORELAND **WATER QUALITY** PROTECTION ACT

2 Shoreland Water Quality Protection; Minimum Standards Required. Amend RSA 483-B:2, IX to read as follows:

IX. Control building sites, placement of structures, and land uses *that may potentially damage the public waters*.

3 Minimum Standards Required. Amend RSA 483-B:2, XV to read as follows:

XV. Anticipate and respond to the impacts of development in shoreland areas *to the extent they may potentially damage the public waters.*

4 Definitions. Amend RSA 483-B:4, VII-b to read as follows:

VII-b. "Impervious surface" means any modified surface that cannot effectively absorb or infiltrate water. Examples of impervious surfaces include, but are not limited to, roofs, *and unless designed to effectively absorb or infiltrate water*, decks, patios, and paved, gravel, or crushed stone driveways, parking areas, and walkways [~~unless designed to effectively absorb or infiltrate water~~]

VII-c. "Horticultural professional" means any arborist, landscape architect, or gardening consultant whose function is that of providing services relative to horticulture.

5 Definitions. Amend RSA 483-B:4, X-b to read as follows:

X-b. "Natural ground cover" means any herbaceous plant or any woody seedling or shrub generally less than 3 feet in height. [~~Natural ground cover shall also include naturally occurring leaf or needle litter, stumps, decaying woody debris, stones, and boulders.~~] Natural ground cover shall not include lawns, landscaped areas, gardens, invasive species as listed by the department of agriculture, markets, and food in accordance with RSA 430:53, III, exotic species as designated by rule of the department of environmental services in accordance with RSA 487:24, VII, imported organic or stone mulches, or other artificial materials.

6 Definitions. Amend RSA 483-B:4, XIII to read as follows:

XIII. "Primary building line" means a setback for primary structures of [~~at least~~] 50 feet from the reference line.

7 Definitions. Amend RSA 483-B:4, XV to read as follows:

XV. "Protected shoreland" means, for natural, fresh water bodies without artificial impoundments, for artificially impounded fresh water bodies, *except private garden water features and ponds of less than 10 acres*, and for coastal waters and rivers, all land located within 250 feet of the reference line of public waters.

8 Definitions. Amend RSA 483-B:4, XVIII to read as follows:

XVIII. "Removal or removed" means girdled, felled, [~~killed, or~~] cut, sawed, pruned, pushed over, buried, burned, or any other activity conducted to the extent that it otherwise [~~destructively alters or altered~~] *kills* the vegetation.

9 Definitions. Amend RSA 483-B:4, XVIII-c to read as follows:

XVIII-c. "Replace in kind" means the substitution of a new structure for an existing legal structure, whether in total or in part[, ~~with no change in size, dimensions, footprint, interior square footage, and location, with the exception of changes resulting in an increase in the setback to public waters~~].

10 Definitions. Amend RSA 483-B:4, XX-a to read as follows:

XX-a. "Shoreland frontage" means the [~~average of the distances of the actual natural shoreline footage and a straight line drawn between property lines~~] *actual shoreland frontage along the water front measured at the reference line.*

11 Definitions. Amend RSA 483-B:4, XXII to read as follows:

XXII. "Structure" means anything constructed or erected for the support, shelter or enclosure of persons, animals, goods, or property of any kind, with a fixed *permanent* location on or in the ground, exclusive of fences.

12 Definitions. Amend RSA 483-B:4, XXIV-b to read as follows:

XXIV-b. "Unaltered state" means [~~native~~] vegetation allowed to grow without cutting, limbing, trimming, pruning, mowing, or other similar activities except as needed [~~to maintain the health of the plant being trimmed, as allowed by rules of the department~~] *for plant health, normal maintenance, and renewal.*

13 Enforcement by Commissioner; Duties; Woodland Buffer. Amend RSA 483-B:5, II to read as follows:

II. The commissioner or his *or her* designee may, for cause, enter upon any *subject* land or parcel at any reasonable time *after written notification and with prior permission of the owner* to perform oversight and enforcement duties provided for in this chapter.

14 Permit Required; Exemption. Amend RSA 483-B:5-b, I to read as follows:

I.(a) No person shall commence construction, excavation, or filling activities within the protected shoreland without obtaining a permit from the department to ensure compliance with this chapter. ***For projects which have no impact on water quality and which follow department rules, the applicant shall qualify for a permit by notification. The owner may proceed with the proposed project immediately upon receipt of written notice from the department that a complete and appropriate notification has been received by the department. A notification shall be complete and appropriate provided it meets or exceeds all of the minimum standards under RSA 483-B:9, includes a notification form signed by the owner of property, the name and address of the property owner, the address of the site on which the work will occur, the name of the jurisdictional waterbody, the tax map and lot number on which the proposed work will occur, plans clearly and accurately depicting the work to be completed relative to the reference line of the jurisdictional waterbody, photographs of the area to be impacted, and identification of those project criteria listed below that would qualify the project for a permit by notification. Such project criteria shall include:***

(1) Construction, excavation, and filing, or other activity that impacts less than 1,500 square feet and adds no more than 900 square feet of impervious area within a protected shoreland area.

(2) Construction, excavation, and filling, directly related to stormwater management improvements and erosion control projects or environmental restoration or enhancement projects.

(3) Maintenance, repairs, and improvements of public utilities, public roads, and public access facilities.

(4) Any similar activities defined as qualified for a permit by notification by rules of the department.

(b) The permit application fee shall be \$100 plus \$.10 per square foot of area affected by the proposed activities and shall be deposited in the wetlands and shorelands review fund established under RSA 482-A:3, III. Such fees shall be capped as follows:

(1) For projects that qualify for permit by notification under RSA 483-B:17, X, \$100 for restoration of water quality improvement projects and \$250 for all other permit by notification projects.

(2) For projects of 0-9,999 square feet, ***that do not qualify for a permit by notification***, \$750.

(3) For projects of 10,000-24,999 square feet, \$1,875.

(4) For projects of 25,000 square feet or more, \$3,750.

(c) If the application is denied after relying on the recommendations of the department, the application fee shall be refunded to the applicant within 30 days of such denial.

15 New Paragraph; Permit Required; Exemption. Amend RSA 483-B:5-b by inserting after paragraph IV-a the following new paragraph:

IV-b. No permits issued by the department pursuant to this chapter that involve private, non-federal undertakings shall require coordination with or clearance by the New Hampshire division of historical resources.

16 Permit Required; Exemption. Amend RSA 483-B:5-b, V to read as follows:

V.(a) Within 30 days of receipt of an application for a permit or ~~[75]~~ **30** days of receipt of an application for a permit that will require a ~~[variance of the minimum standard of RSA 483-B:9, V or a]~~ waiver of the minimum standards of RSA 483-B:9, the department shall request any additional information ***reasonably*** required to complete its evaluation of the application, and provide the applicant with any written technical comments the department deems necessary. Any request for additional information shall specify that the applicant submit such information as soon as practicable and notify the applicant that if all of the requested information is not received within ~~[60]~~ **120** days of the request, the department shall deny the application.

(b) When the department requests additional information pursuant to subparagraph (a), the department shall, within ~~[30]~~ **20** days of the department's receipt of the information:

(1) Approve the application~~[- in whole or in part,]~~ and issue a permit; or

(2) Deny the application, and issue written findings in support of the denial; or

(3) Extend the time for rendering a decision on the application for good cause and with the written agreement of the applicant.

(c) Where no request for additional information is made, the department shall, within 30 days of receipt of the application for a permit or [75] **30** days of receipt of an application for a permit that will require a ~~[variance of the minimum standard of RSA 483-B:9, V or a]~~ waiver of the minimum standards of RSA 483-B:9[~~]~~,

[~~(1)~~] approve or deny the application~~[- in whole or in part, and issue a permit; or~~

(2) ~~Deny the application, and issue]~~ **with** written findings in support of the ~~[denial; or~~

(3) ~~Extend the time for rendering a decision on the application for good cause and with the written agreement of the applicant]~~ **decision.**

(d) Within 5 business days of receipt of a permit by notification filing the department shall issue a written notice to the property owner or agent stating that the notification has either been accepted or rejected.

[~~(d)~~] **(e)**(1) The time limits prescribed by this paragraph shall supersede any time limits provided in any other provision of law. If the department fails to act within the applicable time frame established in subparagraphs (b) and (c), the applicant may ask the department to issue the permit by submitting a written request. If the applicant has previously agreed to accept communications from the department by electronic means, a request submitted electronically by the applicant shall constitute a written request.

(2) Within 14 days of the date of receipt of a written request from the applicant to issue the permit, the department shall:

(A) Approve the application, in whole or in part, and issue a permit; or

(B) Deny the application and issue written findings in support of the denial.

(3) If the department does not issue either a permit or a written denial within the 14-day period, the applicant shall be deemed to have a permit by default and may proceed with the project as presented in the application. The authorization provided by this subparagraph shall not relieve the applicant of complying with all requirements applicable to the project, including but not limited to requirements established in or under this chapter and RSA 485-A relating to water quality.

(4) Upon receipt of a written request from an applicant, the department shall issue written confirmation that the applicant has a permit by default pursuant to subparagraph (d)(3), which authorizes the applicant to proceed with the project as presented in the application and requires the work to comply with all requirements applicable to the project, including but not limited to requirements established in or under this chapter and RSA 485-A relating to water quality.

[~~(e)~~] **(f)** All applications filed in accordance with the rules adopted by the department under RSA 483-B:17 and which meet the minimum standards of this chapter shall be approved and a permit shall be issued.

[~~(f)~~] **(g)** The department may extend the time for rendering a decision under subparagraphs (b)(3) and (c)(3), without the applicant's agreement, on an application from an applicant who previously has been determined, after the exhaustion of available appellate remedies, to have failed to comply with this chapter or any rule adopted or permit or approval issued under this chapter, or to have misrepresented any material fact made in connection with any activity regulated or prohibited by this chapter, pursuant to an action initiated under RSA 483-B:18. The length of such an extension shall be no longer than reasonably necessary to complete the review of the application, and shall not exceed 30 days unless the applicant agrees to a longer extension. The department shall notify the applicant of the length of the extension.

[~~(g)~~] **(h)** The department may suspend review of an application for a proposed project on a property with respect to which the department has commenced an enforcement action against the applicant for any violation of this chapter, RSA 482-A, RSA 485-A:17, or RSA 485-A:29-44, or of any rule adopted or permit or approval issued pursuant to this chapter, RSA 482-A, RSA 485-A:17, or RSA 485-A:29-44. Any such suspension shall expire upon conclusion of the enforcement action and completion of any remedial actions the department may require to address the violation; provided, however, that the department may resume its review of the application sooner if doing so will facilitate resolution of the violation. The department shall resume its review of the application at the point the review was suspended, except that the department may extend any of the time limits under this paragraph and its rules up to a total of 30 days for all such extensions. For purposes of this subparagraph, "enforcement action" means an action initiated under RSA 482-A:13, RSA 482-A:14, RSA 482-A:14-b, RSA 483-B:18, RSA 485-A:22, RSA 485-A:42, or RSA 485-A:43.

17 Minimum Shoreland Protection Standards. Amend RSA 483-B:9, II(d) to read as follows:

(d) No fertilizer, except limestone, shall be applied to vegetation or soils located within 25 feet of the reference line of any public water. ***Beyond 25 feet, limestone or any fertilizer containing*** low phosphate~~;~~ ***and*** slow release nitrogen ~~[fertilizer or limestone;]~~ may be used ~~[on areas beyond 25 feet from the reference line].~~

18 Minimum Shoreland Protection Standards. RSA 483-B:9, V(a) through V(b)(2)(A)(ii) is repealed and reenacted to read as follows:

(a) Maintenance of a Waterfront Buffer.

(1) The waterfront buffer shall be those protected shorelands within 50 feet of the reference line. The purpose of this buffer shall be to protect the quality of public waters while allowing homeowner discretion with regard to water access, safety, viewscape maintenance, and lot design.

(2) Within the waterfront buffer all of the following prohibitions and limitations shall apply:

(A) No chemicals, including pesticides or herbicides of any kind shall be applied to ground, turf, or established vegetation except if applied by horticultural professionals who have a pesticide application license issued by the department of agriculture or as allowed under special permit issued by the division of pesticide control under rules adopted by the pesticide control board under RSA 541-A, or fertilizers of any kind except those specified in RSA 483-B:9, II(d).

(B) Rocks and stumps and their root systems shall be left intact in the ground unless removal is specifically approved by the department, pursuant to RSA 482-A or RSA 483-B:11, II or unless rocks are removed to improve runoff control or the planting in the waterfront buffer, and stumps that are removed are replaced with pervious surfaces, new trees, or other woody vegetation.

(C) No natural ground cover shall be removed except as necessary for a foot path to water and access ways as provided under RSA 483-B:9, V(a)(2)(D)(ix), for normal maintenance, to protect the waterfront buffer, cutting those portions that have grown over 3 feet in height for the purpose of providing a view, to provide access to natural areas or shoreline, or as specifically approved by the department, pursuant to RSA 482-A or RSA 483-B.

(D) Starting from the northerly or easterly boundary of the property, and working along the shoreline, the waterfront buffer shall be divided into 50 by 50 foot segments. Owners of land within the waterfront buffer shall measure, calculate, and maintain the tree, sapling, shrub, and groundcover point score in each of these segments in accordance with the methods and standards described in subparagraphs (i) through (ix).

(i) Tree and sapling diameters shall be measured at 4 1/2 feet above the ground for existing trees and saplings, or by caliper at a height consistent with established nursery industry standards when nursery stock is to be used, and are scored as follows:

Diameter or Caliper Score

1 to 3 inches – 1

3 to 6 inches – 5

6 to 12 inches –10

12 to 24 inches –15

Greater than 24 inches- 25

(ii) Shrubs and groundcover plants shall be scored as follows:

Four square feet of shrub area – 1 point.

Ground cover planted in the form of sod or mat – one point for every 50 square feet.

Shrub and groundcover shall not count for more than 25 points in each full segment.

(iii) Dead, diseased, or unsafe trees or saplings shall not be included in scoring.

(iv) If the total tree and sapling score in any 50 foot by 50 foot segment exceeds 50 points, then trees, saplings, shrubs, and groundcover (vegetation) may be removed as long as the sum of the scores for the remaining trees and saplings in that segment does not total less than 50 points. If for any reason there is insuf-

ficient area for a full segment, or the segment contains areas incapable of supporting trees and saplings, such as areas of rock, ledge, or beaches, the point score requirement for the remaining vegetation in that partial segment shall be reduced proportionally to that required of a full segment. Vegetation shall not be removed from any segment which fails to meet the minimum point score for that segment. Owners are encouraged to take efforts to plan the maintenance of their waterfront buffer areas including the planting of additional non-invasive vegetation to increase point scores within segments, thus providing sufficient points to allow the future removal of vegetation as may become necessary while still meeting the requirements of this paragraph.

(v) The department shall approve applications pursuant to RSA 482-A or RSA 483-B that include the planting of trees, saplings, shrubs, and groundcover as necessary to at least maintain either the existing point score or the minimum score required. The department shall not approve any application that would result in a combined vegetation score of less than the minimum score required where the segment initially meets the minimum score or would result in any reduction of the point score where the segment does not initially meet the minimum score.

(vi) Owners of lots and holders of easements on lots that were legally developed prior to July 1, 2008 may maintain but not enlarge cleared areas, including but not limited to existing lawns, gardens, landscaped areas, beaches, and rights-of-way for public utilities, public transportation, and public access, and may repair existing utility structures within the waterfront buffer. Conversion to or planting of cleared areas with non-invasive species of ground cover, shrubs, saplings, and trees is encouraged but shall not be required unless it is necessary to meet the requirements of subparagraph (g)(2) or (g)(3), or RSA 483-B:11, II.

(vii) Normal trimming, pruning, and thinning of branches to the extent necessary to maintain the health of the planted area as well to protect structures, maintain clearances, and provide views is permitted provided such activity does not endanger the health of the plant.

(viii) When necessary for the completion of construction activities permitted in accordance with RSA 483-B:6, a temporary 12 foot wide access path shall be allowed. On those properties accessible only by water, this access path may be maintained provided it is stabilized with a surface that will infiltrate stormwater. On other properties the access path shall be completely restored and replanted with vegetation upon completion of construction except as allowed under subparagraph (ix).

(ix) A permanent 6-foot wide foot path as well as access to any docks, beaches, structures, existing open areas, and the water body, configured in a manner that will not concentrate storm water runoff or contribute to erosion, are allowed.

(b) Maintenance of a Natural Woodland Buffer.

(1) A natural woodland buffer shall be maintained within 150 feet of the reference line. The first 50 feet of this buffer is designated the waterfront buffer and is subject to the additional requirements of subparagraph (a). The purpose of the natural woodland buffer shall be to protect the quality of public waters by minimizing erosion, preventing siltation and turbidity, stabilizing soils, preventing excess nutrient and chemical pollution, maintaining natural water temperatures, maintaining a healthy tree canopy and understory, preserving fish and wildlife habitat, and respecting the overall natural condition of the protected shoreland.

(2) Within the natural woodland buffer of a given lot the vegetation, except lawn, within at least 25 percent of the area outside the waterfront buffer shall be maintained unaltered or improved with additional vegetation. Owners of lots legally developed or landscaped prior to July 1, 2008 that do not comply with this standard are encouraged to, but shall not be required to, increase the percentage of area to be maintained in an unaltered state. The percentage of area maintained in an unaltered state on nonconforming lots shall not be decreased.

19 Impervious Surfaces. Amend RSA 483-B:9, V(g) to read as follows:

(g) Impervious surfaces.

(1) ~~[Subject to subparagraph (2);]~~ No more than 30 percent of the area of a lot located within the protected shoreland shall be composed of impervious surfaces, ***unless a stormwater management system designed and certified by a professional engineer that will not concentrate stormwater runoff or contribute to erosion is implemented.***

(2) If the impervious surface area will exceed 20 percent, a stormwater management system shall be implemented and maintained which is designed to infiltrate increased stormwater from development occurring after the effective date of this paragraph in accordance with rules established by the department under RSA 485-A:17.

(3) If the impervious surface area will exceed [20] **30** percent and the [natural] tree, [and] sapling [cover], **shrub, and groundcover** in the waterfront buffer does not meet the [50-point minimum] **point** score **requirement** of RSA 483-B:9, V(a)(2)(D) in any segment, then such segment shall be planted, as determined by rule of the department, with [native] trees, saplings, **shrubs**, or [natural ground cover] **groundcover** in sufficient quantity, type, and location either to meet the minimum score or to provide at least an equivalent level of protection as provided by the minimum score and shall be maintained in accordance with RSA 483-B:9, V(a).

20 Waivers. Amend RSA 483-B:9, V(i) to read as follows;

(i) The commissioner shall have the authority to grant [variances] **waivers** from the minimum standards of this section. Such authority shall be exercised [subject to the criteria which govern the grant of a variance by a zoning board of adjustment under RSA 674:33, I(b)] **if the commissioner deems that strict compliance with the minimum standards of this section will provide no material benefit to the public and have no material adverse effect on the environment or the natural resources of the state. Waivers shall also be granted to accommodate the reasonable needs of persons with disabilities.**

21 Nonconforming Lots of Record. Amend RSA 483-B:10, I to read as follows:

I. Except when otherwise prohibited by law, present and successive owners of an individual undeveloped lot may construct a single family residential dwelling **and appurtenant accessory structures** on it, notwithstanding the provisions of this chapter. Conditions may be imposed which, in the opinion of the commissioner, more nearly meet the intent of this chapter, while still accommodating the applicant's rights.

22 New Paragraph; Nonconforming Lots of Record; Merger. Amend RSA 483-B:10 by inserting after paragraph II the following new paragraph:

III. Consistent with RSA 674:39-a, a municipality shall not merge adjacent nonconforming lots in common ownership without the consent of the owner.

23 Nonconforming Structures. RSA 483-B:11 is repealed and reenacted to read as follows:

483-B:11 Nonconforming Structures.

I. Except as otherwise prohibited by law or applicable municipal ordinance, nonconforming structures located within the protected shoreland may be repaired, replaced in kind, reconstructed in place, altered, or expanded. Repair, replacement-in kind, or reconstruction in place may alter or remodel the interior design or existing foundation of the nonconforming structure, but shall result in no expansion or relocation of the existing footprint within the waterfront buffer. However, alteration or expansion of a nonconforming structure may expand the existing footprint within the waterfront buffer, provided the structure is not extended closer to the reference line and the proposal or property is made more nearly conforming than the existing structure or the existing conditions of the property.

II. For the purposes of this section, a proposal that is "more nearly conforming" means alteration of the location or size of the existing footprints, or redevelopment of the existing conditions of the property, such that the structures or the property are brought into greater conformity with the design standards of this chapter. Methods for achieving greater conformity include, without limitation, reducing the overall square footage of structural footprints, enhancing stormwater management, adding infiltration areas and landscaping, upgrading wastewater treatment, improving traffic management, or other enhancements that improve wildlife habitat or resource protection.

III. An expansion that increases the sewerage load to an onsite septic system, or changes or expands the use of a septic system, shall require a subsurface approval issued by the department.

IV. Under paragraph I, and except as otherwise prohibited by law or applicable municipal ordinance, primary nonconforming structures may be entirely demolished and reconstructed, with continued encroachment into the waterfront buffer, provided the replacement structure is located farther back from the reference line than the preexisting nonconforming structure.

24 Rulemaking. Amend RSA 483-B:17, IV to read as follows:

IV. Procedures and criteria for the size[,] **and** placement[, and construction] of small accessory structures such as storage sheds and gazebos, which are consistent with the intent of this chapter, between the reference line and the primary building line.

25 Penalties. RSA 483-B:18, III is repealed and reenacted to read as follows:

III. Persons violating the provisions of this chapter and damaging the public waterway who, after notification by the department, fail to make a good faith effort at remediation and restoration shall be subject to the following:

(a) Upon petition of the attorney general or of the municipality in which the violation occurred, the superior court may levy upon any person violating this chapter a civil penalty in an amount not to exceed \$5,000 for each continuing violation. The superior court shall have jurisdiction to restrain a continuing violation of this chapter, and to require remediation.

(b) The commissioner, after notice and hearing pursuant to RSA 541-A, may impose an administrative fine of up to \$5,000 for each offense upon any person who violates this chapter. Rehearings and appeals relating to such fines shall be governed by RSA 541. Imposition of an administrative fine under this section shall not preclude the imposition of further civil penalties under this chapter.

(c) Notwithstanding the \$5,000 fine limit in subparagraph (b), the administrative fine for each repeat violation of this chapter may be multiplied by a factor of 2 for every previous violation committed by the person or entity.

26 New Paragraph; Shoreland Advisory Committee. Amend RSA 483-B:21 by inserting after paragraph VII the following new paragraph:

VIII. Any permit applications denied under any section of this chapter shall be reported to the shoreland advisory committee by the department.

27 Permit Application Fees; Effective Date. Amend 2008, 5:28, II to read as follows:

II. **Paragraph I** of section 27 of this act shall take effect July 1, ~~[2011]~~ **2016**.

28 Definitions. Amend RSA 483-B:4, XVII(a) to read as follows:

(a) For all lakes, ponds, and artificial impoundments greater than 10 acres in size, the surface elevation as listed in the Consolidated List of Water Bodies subject to the ~~[Comprehensive]~~ shoreland **water quality** protection act as maintained by the department.

29 Shoreland Advisory Committee. Amend the introductory paragraph of RSA 483-B:21 to read as follows:

There is established a shoreland advisory committee. All members shall be New Hampshire residents representing diverse geographic areas of the state. The primary focus of this committee is to address residential shorefront owner input and perspective relating to shoreland development regulated under the ~~[comprehensive]~~ shoreland **water quality** protection act under this chapter and the regulation of shoreline structures under RSA 482-A.

30 Approval to Increase a Load on a Sewage System. Amend RSA 485-A:38, II-a(c) to read as follows:

(c) When applicable, the proposed expansion, relocation, or replacement complies with the requirements of the ~~[comprehensive]~~ shoreland **water quality** protection act, RSA 483-B. 31 Repeal. RSA 483-B:9, V(c)(1), relative to subdivision of land within the protected shoreland, is repealed.

32 Effective Date.

I. Section 27 of this act shall take effect June 30, 2011.

II. The remainder of this act shall take effect 60 days after its passage.

Commerce
March 8, 2011
2011-0705s
08/09

Amendment to SB 160-FN

Amend RSA 384-H:2, III as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

III. "Installment loan" or "loan" means a loan, advance of money, or extension of credit with a repayment term agreed to by the parties and not exceeding 180 days, including any loan transaction conducted via any medium whatsoever, including paper, facsimile, Internet, or telephone.

Amend RSA 384-H:4, II as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

II. No lender shall make an installment loan to a consumer if:

(a) The total of all loan payments for that loan coming due within the first calendar month of the loan exceeds the lesser of:

(1) \$1,000; or

(2) Thirty-five percent of the consumer's gross monthly income.

(b) The consumer has another outstanding installment loan with the lender.

Amend RSA 384-H:10, II as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

II. The commissioner may conduct examinations of the books, records, and loan documents of a licensee after giving reasonable notice to the licensee.

Amend RSA 384-H:12, II (b)-(d) as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

(b) The requirements under RSA 384-H:13 are satisfied;

(c) The payment of the annual license fee required under paragraph IV; and

(d) The applicant has submitted such other information as the commissioner may reasonably deem necessary.

Amend the introductory paragraph of RSA 384-H:12, IV as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

IV. A licensee shall pay an annual fee of \$450. In addition to the license fee, the reasonable expense of any examination or hearing by the commissioner under any provisions of this chapter shall be borne by the licensee. If a licensee fails to renew its license prior to its expiration, the license shall automatically expire; however, the commissioner, in his or her discretion, may reinstate an expired license upon:

Amend RSA 384-H:13 as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

384-H:13 Net Worth. Each applicant and licensee shall maintain a positive net worth at all times. Each applicant shall demonstrate that it has available for use in such business at each location specified in the application, at least \$25,000, or in the case of a licensee, has such amount available or actually invested in loans made under this chapter at each location or has posted a continuous surety bond in the amount of \$25,000 in the form and under the terms determined by the commissioner.

Amend the bill by replacing section 2 with the following:

2 Effective Date. This act shall take effect 30 days after its passage.

Senate Executive Departments and Administration

March 8, 2011

2011-0706s

10/01

Amendment to SB 161-FN

Amend the bill by replacing all after the enacting clause with the following:

1 Procedure for Adopting Rule; Public Hearing. Amend RSA 541-A:3, IV to read as follows:

IV. ~~[Holding]~~ **Scheduling** a public hearing and receiving comments under RSA 541-A:11;

2 Notice of Rulemaking Proceedings; Scheduled Public Hearing; Concise Summary. Amend RSA 541-A:6, I(e) and (f) to read as follows:

(e) The date of the first **scheduled** agency public hearing and the cut-off date for the submission of written materials to the agency.

(f) ***If existing rules are being amended, readopted, or readopted with amendment***, a concise summary ~~[explaining the effect]~~ of the ~~[rule]~~ ***existing rules and any proposed amendments, and if the proposed rules are being adopted, a concise summary of the proposed rules.***

3 Notice of Rulemaking Proceedings; Substantial Noncompliance Scheduled Public Hearing. Amend RSA 541-A:6, II and III to read as follows:

II. The director of legislative services may refuse to publish a notice if the director determines that there is significant noncompliance with the requirements of paragraph I. ***In this paragraph, “significant noncompliance” means one or more errors of such magnitude that a reasonable person would not be able to discern what rules are the subject of the rulemaking proceeding and/or what the agency is proposing to do. The term includes the absence of elements required by paragraph I.***

III. The agency shall send notice to the director of legislative services, to all persons regulated by the proposed rules who hold occupational licenses issued by the agency, and to all persons who have made timely request for advance notice of rulemaking proceedings. Upon request the agency shall send notice to the president of the senate, to the speaker of the house of representatives, to the chairperson of the fiscal committee, and to the chairpersons of the legislative committees having jurisdiction over the subject matter. Notice shall be made not less than 20 days before the first ***scheduled*** agency public hearing required by RSA 541-A:11, I. Notice to occupational licensees shall be by U.S. Mail, electronically, agency bulletin or newsletter, public notice advertisement in a publication of daily statewide circulation, or in such other manner ***that is reasonably calculated to inform such licensees of the proposed rulemaking. The committee may identify additional methods of notifying occupational licensees that are*** deemed sufficient ~~[by the committee]~~.

4 New Paragraphs; Rulemaking Register; Authority of Director; Date of Publication. Amend RSA 541-A:9 by inserting after paragraph I the following new paragraphs:

I-a. Prior to publication and with prior notice to the agency, the director of legislative services may correct typographical, spelling, and punctuation errors, as well as unintentional errors in references and citations in a submission, provided the corrections do not affect the substance of the notice.

I-b. The date of publication of the rulemaking register shall be the date on which the register is available to the public on the general court information services web site.

5 Rulemaking Register; Electronic Copies. Amend RSA 541-A:9, II and III to read as follows:

II. The rulemaking register shall be made available upon request to agencies and officials of this state free of charge. The director of legislative services shall send a ***paper or electronic*** copy of the rulemaking register upon request to the clerk of each municipality in the state and upon request to any member of the general court free of charge. ***Municipalities and members of the general court shall be deemed to have requested an electronic copy unless a paper copy is specifically requested. Paper*** copies of the register which are sent to municipalities and to members of the general court shall be sent by first-class mail.

III. ***Paper copies*** of the register shall also be made available upon request to other persons at prices fixed by the director of legislative services to cover mailing and publication costs.

6 Filing Proposed Rule Text; Establishing and Revising Text of Rules. Amend RSA 541-A:10 to read as follows:

541-A:10 Filing of Proposed Rule Text; ***Establishing and Revising Text.***

I. At the same time the notice required by RSA 541-A:6, I is filed, the agency shall file the text of the proposed rule with the director of legislative services. The text ***of the proposed rules*** as filed ***pursuant to RSA 541-A:3, III*** shall not be changed ~~[or established as]~~ ***prior to the hearing scheduled pursuant to RSA 541-A:11, I(a).***

II. ***The agency shall not establish*** the text of the final proposal until after the conclusion of the public comment period established pursuant to RSA ~~[541-A:11]~~ ***541-A:11, I(b). If the agency elects to solicit comment pursuant to RSA 541-A:11, I(c), the agency shall prepare a draft final proposal that is annotated to show how the rules as initially proposed are proposed to be changed. In response to comment received, the agency may revise the draft prior to filing the final proposal in accordance with RSA 541-A:12.***

7 Public Hearing; Public Comment Period. Amend RSA 541-A:11, I to read as follows:

I.(a) Each agency shall ~~[hold]~~ ***schedule*** at least one public hearing on all proposed rules ***filed pursuant to RSA 541-A:3*** and shall afford all interested persons reasonable opportunity to testify and to submit data, views, or arguments in writing or, if practicable for the agency, in electronic format, in accordance with the terms of the notice ***filed pursuant to RSA 541-A:3, I*** and the provisions of this section. The office of legislative services shall provide oral or written comments on potential bases for committee objection under RSA 541-A:13, IV in a form and manner determined by the director of the office of legislative services. Each

agency shall require all materials submitted in writing to be signed by the person who submits them, and the agency shall transfer to hard copy, if practicable for the agency, all materials submitted as diskette, electronic mail, or other electronic format. Copies of the proposed rule shall be available to the public under RSA 91-A and at least 5 days prior to the ***date of the scheduled*** hearing.

(b) For rules proposed by a board or commission, a period of at least [10] ***5 business*** days after the hearing shall be provided for the submission of materials in writing or in electronic format, unless a shorter period is specified in the notice. If a shorter period is specified in the notice, the deadline for the submission of such materials shall not be earlier than the scheduled conclusion of the public hearing. For rules proposed by an agency official, a period of at least [10] ***5 business*** days after the hearing shall be provided in all instances. If a hearing is continued or postponed as provided in paragraph III or IV of this section, the period for the submission of materials in writing or in electronic format shall be extended ***unless the previously-established deadline meets the applicable requirement specified above.***

(c) ***An agency may hold a public hearing or otherwise solicit public comment on a draft final proposed rule prior to filing the final proposed rule pursuant to RSA 541-A:3, V. Notice of such hearing or comment period shall be provided by such means as are deemed appropriate to reach interested persons, which may include publishing a notice in the rulemaking register.***

8 New Paragraph; Public Hearing; Preregistration. Amend RSA 541-A:11 by inserting after paragraph I the following new paragraph:

I-a. For an agency that has adopted preregistration requirements under RSA 541-A:16, I(b)(3), the agency may cancel a scheduled hearing if the agency:

(a) Has a reasonable belief that no member of the public is likely to attend the hearing;

(b) Has clearly stated the requirement to preregister for the hearing prominently in the notice filed under RSA 541-A:6, I, and in any other information about the rulemaking proceeding the agency has distributed to interested persons;

(c) Has received no preregistration for attendance at a scheduled hearing as of 2 business days in advance of the hearing; and

(d) Informs the director of legislative services of the cancellation.

Cancellation of the public hearing shall not affect the deadline for submission of comments.

9 Filing Final Proposal; Incorporation by Reference; Internet Content. Amend RSA 541-A:12, II-IV to read as follows:

II. The final proposal shall include:

(a) A cover sheet listing:

(1) The number of the notice and the date the notice appeared in the rulemaking register;

(2) The name and address of the agency;

(3) The title and number of the rule; and

(4) A citation to the statutory authority for the rule.

(b) ~~[Two copies]~~ ***One copy*** of the established text of the final proposed rule.

(c) ~~[A copy of the full text of the statutory authority for the rule.]~~

~~(d)~~ If required pursuant to RSA 541-A:5, VI, an amended fiscal impact statement from the legislative budget assistant stating that as a result of notice and hearing the rule did change and explaining how this change affects the original fiscal impact statement.

~~[(e)]~~ (d) A copy of the fixed text of the final proposed rule annotated clearly to show how the final proposed rule differs from the rule as initially proposed, if the text has changed.

III. ~~[With the final proposal, the agency shall also file the incorporation by reference statement described by paragraph IV of this section, if the]~~ ***An agency [incorporates into] may establish requirements in its rules [any] by citing to a document or to Internet content prepared by [any entity outside the agency] an unrelated third party. If state-enforceable requirements are so established, the agency shall***

file an incorporation by reference statement as specified in paragraph IV with the final proposal. [However, the] ***No*** agency shall [not] incorporate by reference any document ***or Internet content*** prepared by or on behalf of the agency.

IV. Any [required] incorporation by reference statement ***required by paragraph III*** shall include a [separately signed] statement ***signed*** by the adopting authority:

(a) Certifying that the text of the [matter] incorporated ***document or Internet content*** has been reviewed by the agency, with the name of the reviewing official;

(b) Explaining how the text of the [matter] incorporated ***document or Internet content*** can be obtained by the public, and at what cost;

(c) Explaining any modifications to the [matter] incorporated ***document or Internet content***;

(d) Discussing the comparative desirability of reproducing the incorporated [matter] ***document or Internet content*** in full in the text of the rule; and

(e) Certifying that the agency has the capability and the intent to enforce the [rule] ***requirements being incorporated.***

V. If an agency establishes requirements by incorporating undated Internet content by reference, the agency shall make a read-only copy of the incorporated Internet content no later than the date of filing the incorporation by reference statement, and make the dated copy available to the public.

10 New Section; Extension of Currently Effective Rules Pending Readoption. Amend RSA 541-A by inserting after section 14 the following new section:

541-A:14-a Extension of Currently Effective Rules Pending Readoption.

I. If an agency files a notice pursuant to RSA 541-A:6 to readopt existing rules, with or without amendments, the currently effective rules in the filing which would otherwise expire prior to the completion of the readoption of the rules by the agency shall continue in effect until the proposed rules are adopted and effective.

II. If, after filing a notice pursuant to paragraph I, an agency fails to file a final proposal by the deadline specified in RSA 541-A:12, fails to file a response to objection as specified in RSA 541-A:13, or fails to adopt and file the proposed rule as specified in paragraph III, the existing rules which would otherwise expire prior to the completion of the readoption of the rules by the agency shall expire 30 days after such deadline unless the agency has obtained a waiver of the deadline pursuant to RSA 541-A:40, IV(a). If the agency has obtained a waiver to a deadline, such existing rules shall expire 30 days after the deadline established pursuant to RSA 541-A:40, IV(b) if the required action is not taken.

III. If rules are extended pursuant to this section, the agency shall:

(a) Adopt the proposed rules no later than 30 days after the date on which the agency is allowed to adopt the rules under RSA 541-A:14, I; and

(b) File the rules as required by RSA 541-A:14, III with an effective date that is not more than 60 days from the date of filing, except that an agency may specify an effective date that is more than 60 days from the date of filing if a waiver is obtained pursuant to RSA 541-A:40.

11 Agency Rules; Preregistration for Public Hearings. Amend RSA 541-A:16, I(b)(3) to read as follows:

(3) Rules governing public comment hearings for rulemaking, ***including preregistration procedures if the agency intends to require preregistration for any rulemaking hearing.***

12 Filing Rules; Effective Date. Amend RSA 541-A:16, III to read as follows:

III. A rule shall become effective as of 12:01 a.m. on the day after the filing of the adopted rule or as of 12:01 a.m. on the date specified by the agency pursuant to RSA 541-A:14, IV, ***RSA 541-A:14-a, III***, or RSA 541-A:19, X, or such other date and time as specified, provided that filing occurs before such effective date and time. ***Except as provided in RSA 541-A:14-a***, a rule adopted under RSA 541-A:14, IV shall expire after the last day of the [eighth] ***tenth*** year following its becoming effective, unless sooner amended, readopted, or repealed.

13 Time Limit; Effective Period. Amend RSA 541-A:17, I to read as follows:

I. No rule shall be effective for a period of longer than [8] **10** years *except as extended pursuant to RSA 541-A:14-a*, but the agency may adopt an identical rule under RSA 541-A:5 through RSA [541-A:14] **541-A:14-a**, in conformance with the drafting and procedure manual adopted under RSA 541-A:8.

14 Emergency Rules. Amend RSA 541-A:18, I to read as follows:

I. ~~[If an]~~ **An** agency *may proceed to adopt an emergency rule if it* finds *either* that an imminent peril to the public health or safety requires adoption of a rule with less notice than is required under RSA 541-A:6 *or that substantial fiscal harm to the state or its citizens could occur if rules are not adopted with less notice than is required under RSA 541-A:6.* ~~[and states in writing its reasons for that finding, it may proceed to adopt an emergency rule.]~~ The rule may be adopted without having been filed in proposed or final proposed form and may be adopted after whatever notice and hearing the agency finds to be practicable under the circumstances. The agency shall make reasonable efforts to ensure that emergency rules are made known to persons who may be affected by them.

15 Emergency Rules; Adoption. Amend RSA 541-A:18, III(e) to read as follows:

(e) A signed and dated statement by the adopting authority explaining the nature of the ~~[imminent peril to the public health or safety]~~ **basis for the emergency rule**, including ~~[a summary]~~ **an explanation** of the effect upon the state if the emergency rule were not adopted.

16 Interim Rules; New or Amended Statute. Amend RSA 541-A:19, I(a) to read as follows:

(a) Conform with a new or amended **codified** state statute *or chaptered session law*, provided, however, that an agency shall not publish notice of a proposed interim rule more than [90] **120** days after the effective date of the new or amended **codified state** statute *or chaptered session law*;

17 Expedited Process for Readoption of Rules. The director of legislative services shall develop an expedited process for readopting rules which contain no changes or contain only minor changes. Minor changes shall include renumbering, updating internal references, references to documents incorporated by reference, date and year changes, typographical or grammatical errors, and other editorial changes. The director shall consult with agency staff as necessary. The director shall provide a report on an expedited process and any proposals for legislation to the chairperson of the joint legislative committee on administrative rules not later than November 1, 2011.

18 Suspension of Provisions; Waiver. Amend RSA 541-A:40, IV as follows:

IV. **(a)** Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, the director of legislative services *may*, after consultation with the chair and vice-chair of the joint legislative committee on administrative rules, ~~[may,]~~ **and** for good cause shown, waive any deadline *or otherwise extend any time period* contained in any provision of this chapter **which relates to the rulemaking process**.

(b) If a deadline is waived or a time period is extended, the director shall, after consultation with the chair and the vice-chair of the committee and the agency whose rules are affected, establish a new deadline by which the required action shall be taken.

19 Transition; Application. The provisions of this act shall govern the following on or after the effective date of this act:

I. All rulemaking initiated by filing a notice of rulemaking under RSA 541-A:6 or RSA 541-A:19-c.

II. All emergency rules adopted under RSA 541-A:18.

III. All interim rules initiated by filing a proposed interim rule under RSA 541-A:19, II.

IV. All expedited repeal of rules under RSA 541-A:19-a.

V. All notices submitted to the director of legislative services for publication in the rulemaking register.

20 Effective Date. This act shall take effect 60 days after its passage.

Commerce
March 8, 2011
2011-0704s
01/09

Amendment to SB 162-FN

Amend the bill by replacing all after the enacting clause with the following:

1 New Subdivision; Federal Health Care Reform. Amend RSA 400-A by inserting after section 66 the following new subdivision: Federal Health Care Reform

400-A:67 Implementation of Public Law 111-152. The general court shall determine any policy regarding implementation of Public Law 111-152 if it is determined that the state of New Hampshire is required to implement such law. The insurance commissioner, or designee, shall develop recommendations in conjunction with the insurance reform oversight committee, established in RSA 400-A:68, prior to the enforcement of Public Law 111-152. In addition, any state official or agency that seeks to enforce the insurance provisions of Public Law 111-152 shall develop recommendations in conjunction with the oversight committee.

400-A:68 Joint Health Insurance Reform Oversight Committee Established.

I. There is established an oversight committee on health insurance reform consisting of 5 members as follows:

(a) Two members of the senate, appointed by the senate president.

(b) Three members of the house of representatives, appointed by the speaker of the house of representatives.

II. The terms of the members shall be for the biennium and shall be coterminous with their membership in the general court. The committee shall elect a chairman from its membership.

III. The committee shall provide legislative oversight, policy direction, and recommendations for legislation to implement Public Law 111-152 as it determines appropriate.

2 Effective Date. This act shall take effect July 1, 2011.

2011-0704s

AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill establishes an oversight committee to implement Public Law 111-152, should it be determined that the state of New Hampshire is required to implement such law.

Senate Education

March 8, 2011

2011-0713s

04/10

Amendment to SB 192

Amend RSA 189:66, I(e) as inserted by section 1 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

(e) One teacher who is a member of the National Education Association-New Hampshire, appointed by the executive director of the association.

HEARINGS

FRIDAY, MARCH 11, 2011

COMMERCE, Room 100, SH

Sen. Prescott (C), Sen. White (VC), Sen. De Blois, Sen. Houde, Sen. Sanborn

9:00 a.m.

SB 156-FN-L, authorizing retail vehicle dealers to act as agents of the division of motor vehicles in the issuance of vehicle titles and registrations.

EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW

TUESDAY, MARCH 15, 2011

COMMERCE, Room 102, LOB

Sen. Prescott (C), Sen. White (VC), Sen. De Blois, Sen. Houde, Sen. Sanborn

9:00 a.m.

SB 179, relative to qualified purchasing alliances.

9:30 a.m.

SB 111, relative to short sales of a homeowner's residence.

- 9:50 a.m. **SB 86**, requiring the department of labor to warn employers of certain violations prior to imposing a fine.
- 10:10 a.m. **SB 191**, relative to the registration of independent contractors for the purposes of workers' compensation.
- 10:30 a.m. **SB 187**, relative to fair debt collection.
- Rescheduled **SB 120**, relative to alcoholic beverage advertising restrictions.
(**SB 120 HAS BEEN RESCHEDULED FOR MARCH 22ND**)
EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW

INTERNAL AFFAIRS, Room 103, SH

Sen. Prescott (C), Sen. Lambert (VC), Sen. Bradley, Sen. Bragdon, Sen. Larsen

- 1:30 p.m. **CACR 5**, relating to the governor's power to reduce appropriations. Providing that the governor shall have line item reduction power of items in any bill making appropriations of money.
- 1:45 p.m. **SCR 1**, urging Congress to call a convention for the sole purpose of proposing an amendment to the Constitution of the United States.
EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW

THURSDAY, MARCH 17, 2011

ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES, Room 102, LOB

Sen. Odell (C), Sen. Gallus (VC), Sen. Bradley, Sen. Lambert, Sen. Merrill

- 9:00 a.m. **SB 22**, relative to alternative regulation of small incumbent local exchange carriers.
(**THE PREVIOUS HEARING FOR SB 22 WAS RECESSED ON FEBRUARY 3RD**)
- 9:15 a.m. **SB 118**, modifying the definition of renewable generation facility.
EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW

EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENTS AND ADMINISTRATION, Room 100, SH

Sen. Carson (C), Sen. Groen (VC), Sen. Larsen, Sen. Luther, Sen. White

- 9:00 a.m. **SB 190**, relative to the duties and membership of the executive branch ethics committee.
- 9:20 a.m. **SB 166**, relative to medical benefits for beneficiaries of a police officer or firefighter killed in the line of duty.
- 9:40 a.m. **SB 92**, establishing an economic strategic commission to review the relationship between business and government.
- 10:20 a.m. **SB 4**, requiring legislative approval of cost items for state employee contract negotiations.
EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW

FINANCE, Room 103, SH

Sen. Morse (C), Sen. Odell (VC), Sen. Barnes, Sen. Bragdon, Sen. D'Allesandro, Sen. Forrester, Sen. Gallus

- 2:00 p.m. Presentation by NH-DOT
- 3:00 p.m. **EXECUTIVE SESSION ON PENDING LEGISLATION**

JUDICIARY, Room 101, LOB

Sen. Houde (C), Sen. Carson (VC), Sen. Groen, Sen. Luther

- 1:00 p.m. **SB 41**, relative to enforcement of the timber tax and excavation tax by the department of revenue administration.
- 1:15 p.m. **SB 176**, relative to marriage licenses.
- 1:30 p.m. **SB 44**, relative to payment of rent pending a landlord-tenant action.
EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW

TRANSPORTATION, Room 103, LOB

Sen. Rausch (C), Sen. Boutin (VC), Sen. Forsythe, Sen. Kelly, Sen. Stiles

10:30 a.m.

EXECUTIVE SESSION ON PENDING LEGISLATION***TUESDAY, MARCH 22, 2011*****CAPITAL BUDGET**, Room 100, SH

Sen. Boutin (C), Sen. Sanborn (VC), Sen. Larsen, Sen. Morse, Sen. Odell, Sen. Rausch

1:00 p.m.

SB 61, relative to capital appropriations to the liquor commission.**EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW****COMMERCE**, Room 102, LOB

Sen. Prescott (C), Sen. White (VC), Sen. De Blois, Sen. Houde, Sen. Sanborn

9:00 a.m.

SB 50, making various changes to laws regulating trusts and trust companies.

9:15 a.m.

SB 189, relative to the definition of mortgage loan originator.

9:45 a.m.

SB 121, relative to the application of the worker adjustment and retraining notification act.

10:15 a.m.

SB 120, relative to alcoholic beverage advertising restrictions.**EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW****EDUCATION**, Room 103, LOB

Sen. Stiles (C), Sen. Forsythe (VC), Sen. Carson, Sen. Kelly, Sen. Prescott

1:00 p.m.

HB 112, relative to the required number of instructional days and instructional hours in a school district's calendar.

1:10 p.m.

HB 67, expanding the duties of the school administrative unit oversight committee.

1:20 p.m.

HB 172, relative to transporting school children to school and school-supported activities.

1:40 p.m.

HB 216, relative to the instructional authority of school boards.**EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW****INTERNAL AFFAIRS**, Room 103, SH

Sen. Prescott (C), Sen. Lambert (VC), Sen. Bradley, Sen. Bragdon, Sen. Larsen

1:00 p.m.

SB 196, relative to the enrollment of laws.

1:30 p.m.

CACR 14, relating to funding public education. Providing that the general court shall define reasonable standards for elementary and secondary public education, establish reasonable standards of accountability, and mitigate local disparities in educational opportunity and fiscal capacity.**EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW****MEETINGS*****MONDAY, MARCH 14, 2011*****COMMISSION ON HEALTH CARE COST CONTAINMENT (RSA 21-S:2)**

9:00 a.m.

Room 201, LOB

Regular Meeting

COMMISSION RELATIVE TO CHILDREN'S HEALTH INSURANCE (RSA 126-H:10)

1:00 p.m.

Room 103, LOB

Regular Meeting

FRIDAY, MARCH 18, 2011**HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE (RSA 126-A:13)**

9:00 a.m.

Room 205, LOB

Regular Meeting

JOINT LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATIVE RULES (RSA 541-A:2)

9:00 a.m. Rooms 305-307, LOB Regular Meeting

GUARDIAN AD LITEM BOARD (RSA 490-C:1)

1:00 p.m. Room 102, LOB Regular Meeting

LEGISLATIVE ETHICS COMMITTEE (RSA 14-B:2)

2:00 p.m. Room 104, LOB Regular Meeting

MONDAY, MARCH 21, 2011**INTERAGENCY COORDINATING COUNCIL FOR WOMEN OFFENDERS (RSA 21-H:14-c)**

9:00 a.m. Room 100, SH Regular Meeting

JOINT LEGISLATIVE HISTORICAL COMMITTEE (RSA 17-I:1)

10:00 a.m. Room 208, LOB Organizational Meeting

COMMISSION TO STUDY BUSINESS TAXES (RSA 77-F)

12:00 p.m. Room 100, SH Regular Meeting

TUESDAY, MARCH 22, 2011**LONG RANGE CAPITAL PLANNING AND UTILIZATION COMMITTEE (RSA 17-M:1)**

3:30 p.m. Room 201, LOB Regular Business Meeting

THURSDAY, MARCH 24, 2011**HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE (RSA 126-A:13)**

11:00 a.m. Rooms 205-207, LOB Regular Meeting

FRIDAY, MARCH 25, 2011**ASSESSING STANDARDS BOARD (RSA 21-J:14-a)**

9:00 a.m. Room 301, LOB Regular Meeting

FISCAL COMMITTEE OF THE GENERAL COURT (RSA 14:30-a)

10:00 a.m. Rooms 210-211, LOB Regular Business

NEW HAMPSHIRE RAIL TRANSIT AUTHORITY (RSA 238-A:2)

10:00 a.m. Room 201, LOB Regular Meeting

MONDAY, MARCH 28, 2011**OIL FUND DISBURSEMENT BOARD (RSA 146-D:4)**

9:00 a.m. Room 305, LOB Regular Meeting

FRIDAY, APRIL 1, 2011**JOINT LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATIVE RULES (RSA 541-A:2)**

9:00 a.m. Room 103, SH Continued Meeting

MONDAY, APRIL 4, 2011**BOARD OF MANUFACTURED HOUSING (RSA 205-A:25)**

1:00 p.m. Room 201, LOB Regular Meeting

TUESDAY, APRIL 12, 2011**ADVANCED MANUFACTURING EDUCATION ADVISORY COUNCIL (RSA 188-E:21)**

3:00 p.m. Room 101, LOB Regular Meeting

FRIDAY, APRIL 15, 2011

JOINT LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATIVE RULES (RSA 541-A:2)

9:00 a.m. Rooms 305-307, LOB Regular Meeting

GUARDIAN AD LITEM BOARD (RSA 490-C:1)

1:00 p.m. Room 102, LOB Regular Meeting

FRIDAY, APRIL 22, 2011

ASSESSING STANDARDS BOARD (RSA 21-J:14-a)

9:00 a.m. Room 301, LOB Regular Meeting

MONDAY, APRIL 25, 2011

OIL FUND DISBURSEMENT BOARD (RSA 146-D:4)

9:00 a.m. Room 305, LOB Regular Meeting

FRIDAY, APRIL 29, 2011

WORKERS' COMPENSATION ADVISORY COUNCIL (RSA 281-A:62)

9:00 a.m. Rooms 305-307, LOB Regular Meeting

* * * * *

FISCAL NOTE ADDITIONS AND UPDATES HAVE BEEN AMENDED TO THE BILLS ON THE WEB SITE AND ARE AVAILABLE IN THE SENATE CLERK'S OFFICE FOR THE FOLLOWING 2011 BILLS:

SENATE BILLS: 1, 3, 12, 20, 21, 53, 70, 71, 72, 74, 76, 81, 82, 83, 128, 129, 130, 131, 132, 133, 138, 142, 145, 155, 156, 157, 159, 160, 163, 165, 183, 185, 186, 188

HOUSE BILLS: 35, 299

* * * * *

NOTICES

In an effort to help Senate committee hearings run more efficiently, please note that if you have materials for distribution at a hearing bring with you enough copies for each of the Senators on the committee as well as two additional copies for the committee staff. If you wish to have copies available for members of the public please provide those as well. Thank you for your help and assistance.

Peter Bragdon, Senate President

* * * * *

TUESDAY, MARCH 1ST, 8TH, 15TH, AND 22ND, 2011

The Concord Family YMCA and the NH Psychological Association invite all legislators to attend all or part of a four-segment wellness series entitled A Matter of Balance. This series will focus on staying active, healthy lifestyle, safety, and nutrition for individuals over the age of 50. The sessions are being held on March 1st, 8th, 15th, and 22nd at the Concord Family YMCA, 15 N. State Street, from 4:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. Please RSVP and address questions to Deb Acres, Concord Family YMCA, 228-9622 or dacres@concordymca.org.

Senator Amanda Merrill

* * * * *

TUESDAY, MARCH 15, 2011

All legislators and staff are invited to the 9th Annual Capital St. Patrick's Day Corned Beef & Cabbage Lunch and Roast at noon on Tuesday, March 15th, at the Courtyard Marriott-Grappone Center, Concord, with guest roasters Governor John Lynch and the legislative leadership. Please RSVP for your complimentary reservation at **James.Demers@TheDemersGroup.com**.

Senator Jeb Bradley, Senate Majority Leader

* * * * *

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 16, 2011

Members of the General Court and staff are invited to join President Mark W. Huddleston on Wednesday, March 16th from 12:00 p.m. to 1:00 p.m. at St. Paul's Church, 21 Centre Street, for a UNH Legislative Luncheon and to learn how your support for the University of New Hampshire is promoting research and partnerships that are critical to the state's economy.

Senator Amanda Merrill

* * * * *

THURSDAY, MARCH 17, 2011

The 2011 New Hampshire Poetry Out Loud program will hold a state championship competition in Representatives' Hall at the State House on Thursday, March 17, at 7:00 p.m. (snow date, March 18). Twelve NH high school poetry champions will recite great poetry and compete for the opportunity to represent NH at the National Poetry Out Loud Championship in Washington, DC in April. All legislators are invited. This event, sponsored by the NH State Council on the Arts, is free and open to the public. To see a listing of high schools with their towns or for information contact Catherine O'Brian, Arts Education Coordinator, NH State Council on the Arts, 271-0795 or go to: **www.nh.gov/nharts**

Senator Tom De Blois

* * * * *

TUESDAY, MARCH 22, 2011**STATE HOUSE BLOOD DRIVE**

The American Red Cross cordially invites all Legislative members and staff to the annual State House Complex Blood Drive. The blood drive will take place on Tuesday, March 22, 2011, from 9:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. The American Red Cross state-of-the-art self-contained coach will be parked out in front of the State House for this event. Appointments are strongly encouraged. To schedule an appointment, please call the State House Health Services: ext. 2757.

In the past, the blood drive has had overwhelming support. Please help to make this year the best ever!

Senator Jeb Bradley, Senate Majority Leader

* * * * *

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 23, 2011

The members of the Coalition of Insurance and Financial Producers cordially invite all Senators and staff to a reception in the State House cafeteria on Wednesday, March 23, 2011 from 7:30 a.m. to 9:30 a.m. where a breakfast will be served. Look forward to seeing you there.

Senator Jeb Bradley, Senate Majority Leader
Senator Sylvia B. Larsen, Senate Minority Leader

* * * * *

SENATE SCHEDULE

Thursday, March 31, 2011	CROSSOVER – Last Day to ACT on all Senate bills.
Thursday, May 05, 2011	Deadline for Policy Committees to ACT on all House bills with a fiscal impact, except bills exempted pursuant to Senate Rule 4-3 (b).
Monday, May 30, 2011	Memorial Day (State Holiday)
Thursday, June 02, 2011	Last Day to ACT on all House bills.
Wednesday, June 08, 2011	Last Day to FORM Committees of Conference.
Thursday, June 16, 2011 at 12:00 p.m.	Last Day to SIGN Committee of Conference Reports.
Thursday, June 23, 2011	Last Day to ACT on Committee of Conference Reports.
Monday, July 4, 2011	Fourth of July (State Holiday)
Monday, September 5, 2011	Labor Day (State Holiday)
Friday, November 11, 2011	Veterans' Day (State Holiday)
Thursday, November 24, 2011	Thanksgiving Day (State Holiday)
Friday, November 25, 2011	Day after Thanksgiving (State Holiday)
Monday, December 26, 2011	Christmas Day (State Holiday)

* * * * *

VISITORS' CENTER SCHEDULE – MARCH - APRIL

State House Visitation Schedule

As a convenience to the members of the NH General Court, the Visitors' Center offers the following schedule of schools and other groups visiting the State House in **2011**. These listings are to ensure all members be notified in a timely manner of visitors from their district. Our schedule is tightly booked for the school year and subject to changes.

Please contact the Visitors' Center concerning school tour booking information. Legislators planning to meet with students should notify the Visitors' Center. Thank you for your continued participation with your School Visitation Program.

Virginia J. Drew, Director
Deborah Rivers, Public Information Administrator

DATE	TIME	GROUP	Group#/Grade
March 14	9:30/11:00 SH/SC	Lincoln St. School – Exeter	80/4
March 14	10:15/12:00	Walpole School	90/4&5
March 14	1:30	World Affairs Council International Visitors – Middle East & Iraq	24
March 15	8:45	Bow Elementary School	40/4
March 15	10:15	Lamprey River Elementary School – Raymond	60/4
March 16	9:45/11:00 SH/HM	Derry Village School	82/4
March 16	8:45	Bow Elementary School	20/4
March 16	10:00/11:30 SH/Planet	Cutler Elementary School – Swanzey	80/4
March 16	12:30	Sant Bani School – Sanbornton	16/4
March 17	8:45	Bow Elementary School	40/4
March 17	10:30	Barnstead Elementary School	44/4
March 17	11:45	ELS Language Center – Plymouth	25
March 18	9:30	Kimball Walker School	23/4
March 18	11:00	Trinity Christian School – Keene	13/4
March 18	1:00	Kimball School- Concord	45/4
March 21	9:30	World Affairs Council International Visitors – Moldova	8
March 21	10:00/11:30 SH/HM	Newmarket Elementary School	80/4
March 21	2:00	Villa Crest Nursing Home – Manchester	14/Srs

DATE	TIME	GROUP	Group#/Grade
March 22	9:00	Dover High School Alternative Program	10/HS
March 22	10:00	East Kingston Elementary School	40/4
March 22	11:30	New Franklin School – Portsmouth	50/4
March 23	9:30	Greenland Central School	40/4
March 23	11:00	Presentation of Mary School-Hudson	32/4
March 24	9:30	Pennichuck Middle School – Nashua	40/6-8
March 24	10:15/11:30 SH/HM	Charlotte Ave. School – Nashua	95/4
March 25	9:30/11:00 SH/SC	Symonds School – Keene	60/4
March 28	9:30/11:00 SH/HM	Webster Elementary School – Manchester	80/4
March 29	10:15	Lamprey River Elementary School – Raymond	60/4
March 29	11:15	Elm St. School – Laconia	35/4
March 30	9:30/11:00	Beaver Meadow School – Concord	74/4
March 30	11:30	Pleasant St. School – Laconia	57/4
March 31	9:00	UNH – Public Community Health Nursing students	31/Col
March 31	10:00	New Castle Elementary School	15/4
March 31	11:00	World Elementary School – Nashua	14/3
April 1	9:30/11:00 SH/HM	Jaffrey Grade School	80/4